
         

 

 



 
AGENDA 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Palm Beach Gardens City Council Chambers 

10500 N Military Trail 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
August 28, 2025 

12:30 p.m. 
 

A. Call to Order  

B. Proof of Publication 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

1. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda (Limited to 3 Minutes Per Person) 

E. Approval of Minutes 

1. June 26, 2025, Regular Board Meeting Minutes  

F. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication 

2. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget (Limited to 3 Minutes Per Person) 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2025-11 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget 

G. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2025-12 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Meeting Schedule 

2. Consider Acceptance of Annual Engineers Report 2025 

3. Consider Approval of Tree Trimming Proposals (Arazoza) 

4. Consider Award of Contract for Mosquito and Midge Control (Clarke and VDCI) 

5. Consider Approval of Agreement for Underwriter Services & Rule G-17 Disclosure 

6. Discussion Regarding 558 Claim Against Kast for the Clubhouse 

7. Consider Approval of 2026 Avenir 5K K9 for Warriors Fun Run & Walk (Sunday March 15, 2026) 

8. Consider Approval of 2025 Avenir Somerset Charter School Turkey Trot 5k (Saturday November 22, 2025) 

H. Consent Agenda 

1. Consider Ratification of Stone Agmt (Titan Stone) - Pod 21 

2. Consider Ratification of AC Agmt (Quality Electric LLC) - Pod 21 

3. Consider Ratification of Carpenter Contractors of America Agmt - Pod 21 

4. Consider Ratification of Louvers and Signage Agmt (JC Iron Ornamental Works Inc) - Pod 21 

5. Consider Ratification of Charter School Documents 

6. Consider Ratification of CO No 11- Northlake Phase II 

7. Consider Ratification of GL Homes Installation License and Maintenance Agmt 

8. Consider Approval of Proposal for Design Entrance Design Work (HSQ) 

9. Consider Ratification of Contractor Agreement (Palm Beach Gardens) 

10. Consider Ratification of Publix Access Road Addendum (Arazoza) 

11. Consider Ratification of Spine Road 3 Re-Clean of Lift Station #5 (Centerline) 

 

 



 

 

 

I. Clubhouse 

1. Clubhouse Management Report 

2. Consider Request to Extend Tennis Court Hours 

3. Discussion Regarding Clubhouse Rules Updates 

4. Consider Approval of Clubhouse Landscaping Buffer Proposal  

J. Administrative Matters 

1. 2025 Legislative Update Memo – BCLMR 

K. Board Member Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



The Palm Beach Post 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



���������	
����


����������

������
�	��

����
���

	����	���
�

����������	
�����

�
��	����

�� ����������!

Page 8



���������	
����


����������

������
�	��

����
���

	����	���
�

������� !��"��#$�����%!����#����#�� #

�!#� ��!&��"'%� �(�����)�#!� !�������#(����!�#�!��!&�#(��&�� �%�$��������*���+�'"�)�#����

�!#� ��!&���)"%���'!����!&��"������!������#��),

#-
�'	��.�	/���0
�1��	���2�-
�'	��.3�	/��-
��1

��� 	44�
�����
1
�	04

�����������2�-
���������3�5����-	�.��

0������-
���
��	
����������6�����6������78��0,4,��
��-
����4�'
��-�)��.

�� ���� 	�
���� -�4�
�����������

�����������#����6����4�'
��-�)��.

�6�&%�889���/	���-
�0��0	�
�	/�-
���
���	44

����
.�	�:
���	
��	
��-


�.	0��	
�	/��-
���.�
��	/��-
����������/	��&������$
�������*���+,����
�������	��.�4

��
��	/��-
����������5���

���	��
�-
�.�����-�����4
�5-
�
��-
�'	��.�4����	
��.
���
��	�-
������

����-���4���0�	0
�����	4
��
/	�
���,

���	0��	/��-
���

.���
.���.�
��4����
�	����

.�/�	4��-
�����������5
����
��
1

�2;3�.����0��	���	��-
�0�����

-
���
�*4

��
��	������-
�	<�
��	/��-
������������
��
�6�������'��
���	�.6����4�'
��-�)��.

�6�&�	��.�

889��6�#
�
0-	

7�2�+�3�+8��9=����
.*	���	���/�

�������;;�;8;�9=��6�.���
��
	�4�������

���-	���,

#-
�0������-
���
���
.�4

��
����
�	0

��	��-
�0�������
.�5�����
��	
.���
.��
����	�.�
�
�5��-��-


0�	1���	
��	/�&�	��.����5�/	���	44�
����.
1
�	04

��.��������,�#-
�0������-
���
���
.�4

��
��4����


�	
��
�
.��	���.��
6���4
6��
.�0���
��	��
��0
��>
.�	
��-
��
�	�.�����-
�4

��
�,�#-
�
�4����
�	�����	
�

5-

����//�	����0
�1��	���4���0������0��
�����0
�?
���
�
0-	

,

#-
�0��0	�
�	/��-
�0������-
���
������	�-
����	44

����
.�	�:
���	
��	
��-
��.	0��	
�	/��-
�������������.�
�

/	��&������$
�������*���+,�#-
�0�	0	�
.���.�
���
���.
���
�!0
����	
�@����
�

�
�
����
��4

��	/

A�6���,�86�5-��-�����
��
��
��
�	/�A9�+,+��/�	4��-
�0�
1�	����
�������
��4

�,�#-
� ���-	��
�!0
����	
�@

���
�

�
�
����
��4

�����0�	0	�
.����A�69��,�+6�5-��-������.
��
��
�	/�A�,�+�/�	4��-
�0�
1�	����
��,

#-
�
����
��4

��6���	
��5��-��-
��00������
�.
������
��4

����
1�
.�	
��
.�1�.����0�	0
���6���
��	��
��
.

����-
����4�'
��-� 	�
���#�B� 	��
��	�,

��/���������	/����
��4

���4	�
�����
��
�/	�
.�	
��-
�����������5
����
6�555,�1

���..,	��,

�
��0
��	
��
C����
���0
��������	44	.���	
������-���0������-
���
���
.�4

��
���
����
�	/���.����������	�

0-��������40���4

���-	��.��	
������-
����������!<�
����2�+�3�+8��9=�������
����/	����
��-��29�3�-	����0��	���	

�-
�4

��
�,��/��	����
�-
���
��	���0

�-��40���
.6�0�
��
��	
������-
�&�	��.���
�����
�1��
����������=���

�;;�6�/	����.��
��	
�����
���-
����������!<�
,

���-�0
��	
�5-	�.
��.
���	��00
����
��.
����	
�4�.
�����-
�'	��.�5��-��
�0
����	��
��4���
���	
��.
�
.���

�-
�0������-
���
��	��4

��
������.1��
.��-���0
��	
�5����


.����
�	�.�	/�0�	�

.�
����
.��-������	�.�
���6

�-
�0
��	
�4���


.��	�

���
��-�����1
�����4��
�	�.�	/��-
�0�	�

.�
������4�.
6��
���.�
���-
��
���4	
���
.


1�.

�
��0	
�5-��-����-��00
�������	��
����
.,��
4�
���	/��-
�0������-�1
��-
����-���	��00
�������-
�0�����

-
���
���
.��-
����-���	�>�
�5����

�	�:
���	
��5��-�
����.����	/��-
�0��������	
�	/��-
�
	���
,

�

��
���4����
���
�
��
.�/�	4���4
��	���4
�5��-	����.1
����
.�
	���
,

������� !��"��#$�����%!����#����#�� #

555,�1

���..,	��

�"'%��(7���%��'�� (��!�#���*��*��

Page 9



Page 10



 Avenir
  Community Development District

Final Budget
      Fiscal Year 2025/2026

      October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026

Page 11



CONTENTS

1 FINAL BUDGET

2 DETAILED FINAL BUDGET

3 DETAILED FINAL CLUBHOUSE BUDGET

4 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2018)

5 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2019)

6 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2020)

7 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2021)

8 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2023)

9 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2024)

10 DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2025)

11 ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-1 - A-5

12 ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-6 - A-9

13 ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-10 - A-21

Page 12



FINAL BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR 
2025/2026

REVENUES BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 26,027,262$                                                                                               

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,493,728$                                                                                                 

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 17,533,534$                                                                                               

BALANCE 1,392,216$                                                                                                 

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) -$                                                                                                                

Page 13



DETAILED FINAL BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

TOTAL REVENUES 31,891,440$ 30,650,347$ 26,027,262$

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,116,566$ 6,359,171$ 8,493,728$

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 26,774,873$ 24,291,176$ 17,533,534$

BALANCE 1,120,774$ 1,338,105$ 1,392,216$

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 742,703$ -$ -$
Page 14



DETAILED FINAL CLUBHOUSE BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,450,642$       1,691,313$ 1,864,553$         

Page 15



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2018
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 2,741,031$ 2,995,660$ 2,995,660$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 3,010,915$ 2,995,660$ 2,995,660$

Excess/ (Shortfall) (269,884)$ -$ -$

Series 2018-1 Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Taxable Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

Series 2018-3 Bond Information

Page 16



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2019
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 2,309,484$ 1,278,535$ 1,188,835$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 2,701,751$ 1,278,535$ 1,188,835$

Excess/ (Shortfall) (392,267)$ -$ -$

Series 2019 Bond Information

Series 2019 B Taxable Bond Information

Series 2019 B Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

Page 17



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2020
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 10,425,480$ 6,484,553$ -$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 8,719,791$ 6,484,553$ -$

Excess/ (Shortfall) 1,705,689$ -$ -$

Series 2020 Bond Information

Page 18



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2021
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 15,128,758$ 4,850,354$ 4,331,710$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 15,216,923$ 4,850,354$ 4,331,710$

Excess/ (Shortfall) (88,164)$ -$ -$

Series 2021 A-1 Bond Information

Series 2021 A-2 Bond Information

Series 2021 B Bond Information

Page 19



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2023
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 16,736,542$ 6,583,956$ 5,301,637$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 20,544,349$ 6,583,956$ 5,301,637$

Excess/ (Shortfall) (3,807,807)$ -$ -$

Series 2023 Bond Information

Series 2023 Town Center Bond Information

Page 20



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2024
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 25,928$ 761,213$ 802,526$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures -$ 761,213$ 802,526$

Excess/ (Shortfall) 25,928$ -$ -$

Series 2024 A Bond Information

Series 2024 B Bond Information

Page 21



DETAILED FINAL DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2025
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues -$ -$ 1,567,650$

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures -$ -$ 1,567,650$

Excess/ (Shortfall) -$ -$ -$

Series 2025 A Bond Information *EST

Series 2025 B Bond Information *EST

Page 22



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-1 -  A-5)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

$1,502.13
1,481.16$                                                            
2,077.13$                                                            

742.00$                                                               
Total 5,152.07$ 5,150.01$                                           5,386.40$                                           5,802.42$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
1,481.16$                                                            
1,982.71$                                                            

742.00$                                                               
Total 5,057.65$                                           5,055.59$                                           5,291.98$                                           5,708.00$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
1,481.16$                                                            
1,888.30$                                                            

742.00$                                                               
Total 4,963.24$ 4,961.18$                                           5,197.57$                                           5,613.59$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
1,481.16$                                                            
2,171.54$                                                            

742.00$                                                               
Total 5,246.48$                                           5,244.42$                                           5,480.81$                                           5,896.83$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
-$                                                                    

1,888.30$                                                            
-$                                                                    

Total 2,850.77$                                           2,732.20$                                           2,973.75$                                           3,390.43$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
-$                                                                    

1,982.71$                                                            
-$                                                                    

Total 2,945.18$                                           2,826.61$                                           3,068.16$                                           3,484.84$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
1,481.16$                                                            
1,063.83$                                                            

742.00$                                                               
Total 4,138.77$                                           4,136.71$                                           4,373.10$                                           4,789.12$                                                            

1,502.13$                                                            
-$                                                                    

2,127.66$                                                            
-$                                                                    

Total 3,090.13$                                           2,971.56$                                           3,213.11$                                           3,629.79$                                                            

130,565.14$                                                        
112,765.96$                                                        

1,210,565.00$                                                     
Total 3,090.13$                                           2,971.56$                                           1,453,896.10$                                                     

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 23



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-6 -  A-9)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

1,502.13$
1,481.16$
2,322.00$

742.00$
Total 5,396.94$ 5,394.88$ 5,631.27$ 6,047.29$

1,502.13$
1,481.16$
2,554.00$

742.00$
Total 5,628.94$ 5,626.88$ 5,863.27$ 6,279.29$

1,502.13$
1,481.16$
2,554.00$

742.00$
Total 5,628.94$ 5,626.88$ 5,863.27$ 6,279.29$

1,502.13$
1,481.16$
1,697.31$

742.00$
Total 5,057.94$ 4,770.19$ 5,006.58$ 5,422.60$

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 24



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-10 -  A-21)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

1,502.13$                                                          
2,845.00$                                                          

Total 2,845.00$ 3,688.90$                                          3,930.45$ 4,347.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
3,176.00$                                                          

Total 3,176.00$ 4,019.90$                                          4,261.45$ 4,678.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
5,102.00$                                                          

Total 5,102.00$ 5,945.90$                                          6,187.45$ 6,604.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
6,259.00$                                                          

Total 6,259.00$ 7,102.90$                                          7,344.45$ 7,761.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
7,911.00$                                                          

Total 7,911.00$ 8,754.90$                                          8,996.45$ 9,413.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
1,889.00$                                                          

Total 1,889.00$                                          2,732.90$                                          2,974.45$                                          3,391.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
1,983.00$                                                          

Total 1,983.00$                                          2,826.90$                                          3,068.45$                                          3,485.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
3,457.00$                                                          

Total -$                                                   6,513.90$ 4,542.45$ 4,959.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
4,149.00$                                                          

Total -$                                                   7,648.90$                                          5,234.45$ 5,651.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
5,186.00$                                                          

Total -$                                                   8,216.90$                                          6,271.45$                                          6,688.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
7,373.00$                                                          

Total -$ 8,216.90$                                          8,458.45$ 8,875.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
2,208.00$                                                          

-$                                                                   
2,038.46$                                                          

Total 3,176.00$                                          4,019.90$                                          3,293.45$                                          5,748.59$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
7,373.00$                                                          

Total -$ 8,216.90$                                          8,458.45$                                          8,875.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
1,935.00$                                                          

Total 1,935.00$ 2,778.90$                                          3,020.45$                                          3,437.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
2,030.00$                                                          

Total 2,030.00$ 2,873.90$                                          3,115.45$                                          3,532.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
1,279.03$                                                          
2,575.75$                                                          

Total 3,176.00$ 4,019.90$                                          4,261.45$                                          5,356.91$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
295.00$                                                             

Total 295.00$ 1,138.90$                                          1,380.45$ 1,797.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
2,247.00$                                                          

Total 2,247.00$ 3,090.90$                                          3,332.45$ 3,749.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
7,044.00$                                                          

Total -$                                                   2,324.90$ 8,129.45$                                          8,546.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
1,481.00$                                                          

Total -$ 2,324.90$                                          2,566.45$                                          2,983.13$                                                          

1,502.13$                                                          
7,044.00$                                                          

Total -$ 8,046.99$                                          8,129.45$                                          8,546.13$                                                          

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 25



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-12 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2025/2026 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Avenir Community Development District ("District") 

to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2025/2026; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2025/2026 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, PALM BEACH 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2025/2026 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 28th day of August, 2025. 
 

 

 
ATTEST: AVENIR 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 26



 
NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING  

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Avenir Community 
Development District will hold Regular Board Meetings at the offices of Special District 
Services, Inc., 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 at 12:30 p.m. on the 
following dates: 
 

October 23, 2025 
**November 20, 2025** 
**December 18, 2025** 

January 22, 2026 
February 26, 2026 

March 26, 2026 
April 23, 2026 
May 28, 2026 
June 25, 2026 
July 23, 2026 

August 27, 2026 
September 24, 2026 

 
Meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Florida law for community development districts.  A copy of the agenda and information on how 
to access the telephone communication information for this Meeting may be obtained by 
accessing the District’s website at www.avenircdd.org or by contacting the office of the District 
Manager, Special District Services, Inc., located at 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, 
Florida 33410, (561) 630-4922, during normal business hours. Each Meeting may be continued 
to a date, time, and place to be specified on the record at that Meeting.  

 
Note that the telephone communication is being provided by the District as a 

courtesy to members of the public who desire to listen to the Meeting remotely, but 
attendees utilizing this telephone communication will not be able to participate in the 
Meeting.  Any person desiring to provide public comments at such Meeting must attend in 
person. 

 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone. At the 
above location, there will be present a speaker telephone so that any interested person can attend 
the Meeting and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either in person or by 
telephone communication. Each Meeting may be continued in progress without additional notice 
to a time, date, and location stated on the record. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in a Meeting is asked to advise the District Office at least forty-
eight (48) hours prior to the Meeting by contacting the District Manager at 561-630-4922.  If you 
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-
800-955-8771 (TTY)/1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the District Manager. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
Meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 

Page 27



Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
   
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.avenircdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:   

Page 28



 
AVENIR 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

 

Prepared for:

Avenir Community Development District

 
Prepared by:

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Project Number:

Page 29



ballbé & associates, inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page 30



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART I: INTRODUCTION

Year 2025

Avenir Assessment Area One, Avenir Assessment Area Two and Avenir 
Assessment Area Three

Page 31



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART II: GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION

A. Location

Township, Range Section Number

Total District Area = 2,427.50 Acres

Exhibit 1

B. General Information

C. Assessment Area One

Exhibit 2

Page 32



ballbé & associates, inc.

Year 2025:

Item
# Improvement Description Status Ownership

Maintenance

Page 33



ballbé & associates, inc.

D. Assessment Area One - Parcel A-4 Sub-Assessment Area

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

Total Number of Units = 107

Exhibit 3

Year 2025:

Item
# Improvement Description Status Ownership

Maintenance

Page 34



ballbé & associates, inc.

E. 2021 Assessment Area Two

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

TOTALS = 1,437 units
889.96 acres

Exhibit 4

Page 35



ballbé & associates, inc.

Year 2025:

Item
# Improvement Description Status Ownership

Maintenance

F. Assessment Area Two - Special Assessment Bonds (Panther National 
Residential Project)

Page 36



ballbé & associates, inc.

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

TOTALS = 218 units
139.09 acres

Year 2025:

Item
# Improvement Description Status Ownership

Maintenance

Page 37



ballbé & associates, inc.

G. Assessment Area Three

Parcel I.D. Product/Use No. of Units

TOTALS = 751 units
130.62 acres

Exhibit 5

Page 38



ballbé & associates, inc.

Year 2025:

Item
# Improvement Description Status Ownership

Maintenance

Page 39



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART III: PUBLIC PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS UPDATE

1. Master Water Management System – Lakes

Inspection Report Assessment Area One:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three:

Page 40



ballbé & associates, inc.

2. Master Water Management System – Lake Interconnects

Inspection Report Assessment Area One:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three:

3. Spine Roads Construction – Water Distribution and Sewage Collection 
System

Page 41



ballbé & associates, inc.

Inspection Report Assessment Area One:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Two:

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three:

Page 42



ballbé & associates, inc.

4. Lift Stations and Transmission System

Inspection Report Assessment Area Three:

Page 43



ballbé & associates, inc.

5. Spine Roads – Drainage System, Paving, Sidewalks and Related Work

Page 44



ballbé & associates, inc.

6. Spine Roads – Landscape and Irrigation

Page 45



ballbé & associates, inc.

7. Spine Roads – Entry Features

8. Mecca Water Main and Force Main Extensions

9. Clubhouse

10. Avenir Phase One Mitigation Environmental Restoration

Page 46



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 47



ballbé & associates, inc.

PART IV: MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND OPERATION BUDGET / INSURANCE

A. Maintenance, Repair and Operation Budget

2025/2026
2025 2026 Exhibit 6

B. Insurance

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

Page 48



ballbé & associates, inc.

2025

BALLBÉ & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Page 49



ballbé & associates, inc.

  
 
 

 
 

EXHIBITS 
 
 

 
Prepared by:

Page 50



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 51



Page 52



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 53



Page 54



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 55



Page 56



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 57



Page 58



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 59



Page 60



ballbé & associates, inc.
Page 61



 Avenir
 Community Development District

Proposed Budget
      Fiscal Year 2025/2026

      October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026

Page 238Page 62



CONTENTS

I PROPOSED BUDGET

II DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET

III DETAILED PROPOSED CLUBHOUSE BUDGET

IV DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2018)

V DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2019)

VI DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2020)

VII DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2021)

VIII DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2023)

IX DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2024)

X DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE BUDGET (SERIES 2025)

XI ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-1 - A-5

XII ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-6 - A-9

XIII ASSESSMENT COMPARISON - PARCELS A-10 - A-21

Page 239Page 63



PROPOSED BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR 
2025/2026

REVENUES BUDGET

TOTAL REVENUES 26,058,055$

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,493,528$

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 17,564,527$

BALANCE 1,393,209$

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) -$

Page 240Page 64



DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

TOTAL REVENUES 31,891,440$ 30,650,347$ 26,058,055$

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,116,566$ 6,359,171$ 8,493,528$

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 26,774,873$ 24,291,176$ 17,564,527$

BALANCE 1,120,774$ 1,338,105$ 1,393,209$

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 742,703$ -$ -$
Page 241Page 65



DETAILED PROPOSED CLUBHOUSE BUDGET
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,450,642$ 1,691,313$ 1,864,553$      

Page 242Page 66



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2018
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 2,741,031$                         2,995,660$                  2,995,660$                  

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 3,010,915$                         2,995,660$                  2,995,660$                  

Excess/ (Shortfall) (269,884)$                          -$                                -$                                 

Series 2018-1 Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Taxable Bond Information

Series 2018-2 Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

Series 2018-3 Bond Information

Page 243Page 67



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2019
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 2,309,484$                   1,278,535$               1,188,835$            

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 2,701,751$                   1,278,535$               1,188,835$            

Excess/ (Shortfall) (392,267)$                     -$                             -$                           

Series 2019 Bond Information

Series 2019 B Taxable Bond Information

Series 2019 B Tax Exempt (TE) Bond Information

Page 244Page 68



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2020
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 10,425,480$                 6,484,553$               -$                           

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 8,719,791$                   6,484,553$               -$                           

Excess/ (Shortfall) 1,705,689$                   -$                             -$                           

Series 2020 Bond Information

Page 245Page 69



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2021
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 15,128,758$                       4,850,354$                  4,331,710$                  

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 15,216,923$                       4,850,354$                  4,331,710$                  

Excess/ (Shortfall) (88,164)$                            -$                                -$                                 

Series 2021 A-1 Bond Information

Series 2021 A-2 Bond Information

Series 2021 B Bond Information

Page 246Page 70



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2023
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 16,736,542$                       6,583,956$                  5,301,637$                  

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures 20,544,349$                       6,583,956$                  5,301,637$                  

Excess/ (Shortfall) (3,807,807)$                       -$                                -$                                 

Series 2023 Bond Information

Series 2023 Town Center Bond Information

Page 247Page 71



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2024
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues 25,928$                              761,213$                    802,526$                     

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures -$                                       761,213$                    802,526$                     

Excess/ (Shortfall) 25,928$                              -$                                -$                                 

Series 2024 A Bond Information

Series 2024 B Bond Information

Page 248Page 72



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET - SERIES 2025
AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026
OCTOBER 1, 2025 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2026

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Total Revenues -$                                       -$                                1,597,650$                  

EXPENDITURES

Total Expenditures -$                                       -$                                1,597,650$                  

Excess/ (Shortfall) -$                                       -$                                -$                                 

Series 2025 A Bond Information *EST

Series 2025 B Bond Information *EST

Page 249Page 73



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-1 -  A-5)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

$1,502.09
1,481.16$                                                       
2,077.13$                                                       

742.00$                                                          
Total 5,152.07$                                        5,150.01$                                        5,386.40$                                        5,802.38$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
1,481.16$                                                       
1,982.71$                                                       

742.00$                                                          
Total 5,057.65$                                        5,055.59$                                        5,291.98$                                        5,707.96$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
1,481.16$                                                       
1,888.30$                                                       

742.00$                                                          
Total 4,963.24$                                        4,961.18$                                        5,197.57$                                        5,613.55$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
1,481.16$                                                       
2,171.54$                                                       

742.00$                                                          
Total 5,246.48$                                        5,244.42$                                        5,480.81$                                        5,896.79$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
-$                                                                

1,888.30$                                                       
-$                                                                

Total 2,850.77$                                        2,732.20$                                        2,973.75$                                        3,390.39$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
-$                                                                

1,982.71$                                                       
-$                                                                

Total 2,945.18$                                        2,826.61$                                        3,068.16$                                        3,484.80$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
1,481.16$                                                       
1,063.83$                                                       

742.00$                                                          
Total 4,138.77$                                        4,136.71$                                        4,373.10$                                        4,789.08$                                                       

1,502.09$                                                       
-$                                                                

2,127.66$                                                       
-$                                                                

Total 3,090.13$                                        2,971.56$                                        3,213.11$                                        3,629.75$                                                       

130,561.66$                                                    
112,765.96$                                                    

1,210,565.00$                                                 
Total 3,090.13$                                        2,971.56$                                        1,453,892.62$                                                 

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 250Page 74



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-6 -  A-9)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

1,502.09$
1,481.16$
2,322.00$

742.00$
Total 5,396.94$ 5,394.88$ 5,631.27$ 6,047.25$

1,502.09$
1,481.16$
2,554.00$

742.00$
Total 5,628.94$ 5,626.88$ 5,863.27$ 6,279.25$

1,502.09$
1,481.16$
2,554.00$

742.00$
Total 5,628.94$ 5,626.88$ 5,863.27$ 6,279.25$

1,502.09$
1,481.16$
1,697.31$

742.00$
Total 5,057.94$ 4,770.19$ 5,006.58$ 5,422.56$

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 251Page 75



 Avenir Community Development District
Assessment Comparison (Parcels A-10 -  A-21)

Fiscal Year
2025/2026

Projected Gross
 Assessment

1,502.09$
2,845.00$

Total 2,845.00$ 3,688.90$ 3,930.45$ 4,347.09$

1,502.09$
3,176.00$

Total 3,176.00$ 4,019.90$ 4,261.45$ 4,678.09$

1,502.09$
5,102.00$

Total 5,102.00$ 5,945.90$ 6,187.45$ 6,604.09$

1,502.09$
6,259.00$

Total 6,259.00$ 7,102.90$ 7,344.45$ 7,761.09$

1,502.09$
7,911.00$

Total 7,911.00$ 8,754.90$ 8,996.45$ 9,413.09$

1,502.09$
1,889.00$

Total 1,889.00$ 2,732.90$ 2,974.45$ 3,391.09$

1,502.09$
1,983.00$

Total 1,983.00$ 2,826.90$ 3,068.45$ 3,485.09$

1,502.09$
3,457.00$

Total -$ 6,513.90$ 4,542.45$ 4,959.09$

1,502.09$
4,149.00$

Total -$ 7,648.90$ 5,234.45$ 5,651.09$

1,502.09$
5,186.00$

Total -$ 8,216.90$ 6,271.45$ 6,688.09$

1,502.09$
7,373.00$

Total -$ 8,216.90$ 8,458.45$ 8,875.09$

1,502.09$
2,208.00$

-$
2,038.46$

Total 3,176.00$ 4,019.90$ 3,293.45$ 5,748.55$

1,502.09$
7,373.00$

Total -$ 8,216.90$ 8,458.45$ 8,875.09$

1,502.09$
1,935.00$

Total 1,935.00$ 2,778.90$ 3,020.45$ 3,437.09$

1,502.09$
2,030.00$

Total 2,030.00$ 2,873.90$ 3,115.45$ 3,532.09$

1,502.09$
3,176.00$

Total 3,176.00$ 4,019.90$ 4,261.45$ 4,678.09$

1,502.09$
295.00$

Total 295.00$ 1,138.90$ 1,380.45$ 1,797.09$

1,502.09$
2,247.00$

Total 2,247.00$ 3,090.90$ 3,332.45$ 3,749.09$

1,502.09$
7,044.00$

Total -$ 2,324.90$ 8,129.45$ 8,546.09$

1,502.09$
1,481.00$

Total -$ 2,324.90$ 2,566.45$ 2,983.09$

1,502.09$
7,044.00$

Total -$ 8,046.99$ 8,129.45$ 8,546.09$

Lot Count Information

O&M Calculations

Page 252Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



A Global Environmental Products and Services Company 
Avenir Mosquito and Midge Control Services 

1 

References
Customer: Hendry County (2006- Ongoing)

Contract Amount: $530,355.00

Address: P.O Box 1607 99 East Cowboy Way LaBelle, FL 33975

Name: Mr. Shane Parker, P.E, Public Works Director

Email: sparker@hendryfla.net  

Phone Number: (863) 675- 5222

Fax Number: (863) 674-2941

Customer: Sarasota (2000- Ongoing)

Contract Amount: $400,000+

Address: 5531 Pinkney Ave, Sarasota, FL 34233

Name: Wade Brennan, Mosquito Control Manager

Email: wbrennan@scgov.net

Phone Number: (941) 861-9723

Fax Number: N/A

Customer: Celebration Community Development District (1996- Ongoing)

Contract Amount: $249,000+

Address: 313 Campus Street, Celebration, FL 34747

Name: Angel Montagna, District Manager

Email: angel.montagna@inframark.com  

Phone Number: (407) 566- 1935

Fax Number: (407) 566-2064

Page 91



 
A Global Environmental Products and Services Company  
Avenir Mosquito and Midge Control Services 

2 
 

Customer: Okeechobee County (2017- Ongoing) 

Contract Amount: $87,000

Address: 707 NW 6th Street, Okeechobee, FL 34972

Name: Nicholas Martini 

Email: nmartini@okeechobeecountyfl.gov

Phone Number: (863) 634- 9145

Fax Number: N/A

Customer: Miami-Dade County Mosquito Control  (2016,2017, 2022- Ongoing)

Contract Amount: $800,000+

Address: 8901 NW 58th Street Miami, FL 33178

Name: Chalmers Vasquez

Email: Chalmers.Vasquez@miamidade.gov  

Phone Number: (305) 510-1874

Fax Number: N/A

Customer: Brevard County Mosquito Control (2022- Ongoing)

Contract Amount: $150,000+

Address: 800 Perimeter Road, Titusville, FL 32780

Name: Joseph Faella, District Manager

Email: joe.faella@brevard.gov

Phone Number: (321) 264-5032

Fax Number: N/A

Page 92



 
A Global Environmental Products and Services Company  
Avenir Mosquito and Midge Control Services 

3 
 

Previous Experience
Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. has an extensive and proven history of delivering highly 
effective mosquito and midge control programs to both large government entities and luxury residential 
communities. Our experience spans decades of public health protection, nuisance species management, 
and client service excellence, allowing us to bring unmatched expertise to the Avenir CDD.

Government Public Health Mosquito Control Programs

Clarke has partnered with counties, municipalities, and special districts across Florida and beyond to 
implement large-scale, integrated mosquito control programs. These programs require strict adherence to 
regulatory guidelines, rapid response capabilities, and seamless coordination with public officials. Our 
teams are experienced in meeting FDACS, EPA, and NPDES requirements, attending public meetings, and 
providing detailed operational reporting.

Notable examples include:

Hendry County (2006–Ongoing) – Full-scale mosquito control operations, including ground and 
aerial services, valued at over $530,000 annually.

Miami-Dade County Mosquito Control (2016, 2017, 2022–Ongoing) – High-volume operational 
programs exceeding $800,000 annually, including rapid deployment for Zika virus response.

Sarasota County (2000–Ongoing) – Long-term mosquito management with consistent 
performance and public health protection outcomes.

Brevard County Mosquito Control (2022–Ongoing) – Environmentally responsible operations 
utilizing OMRI-listed products and advanced application technology.

Luxury Communities & Private Clubs – Midge Control Expertise

Clarke also specializes in targeted nuisance midge control programs for Florida’s most prestigious 
residential communities and country clubs. These clients require discreet, precise service delivery that 
prioritizes resident comfort and aesthetic standards. 

We currently provide services for premier accounts such as Frenchman’s Reserve, Medalist Country 
Club, Mirasol Club, The Fields, and Broken Sound Master Association. Our tailored midge programs 
integrate:

OMRI-listed Natular® G30 larvicide for long-lasting residual control of larval populations.

Merus® 3.0 organic adulticide for ULV applications that minimize noise and disruption.

Resident and board education programs to ensure understanding of the environmental factors 
and management strategies that lead to sustainable control.

Page 93



 
A Global Environmental Products and Services Company  
Avenir Mosquito and Midge Control Services 

4 
 

Client Management & Professional Delivery

For every contract, Clarke assigns a dedicated operations supervisor and control consultant as 
primary points of contact. These roles are responsible for coordinating scheduling, responding to service 
requests, and providing detailed reports after each treatment. Our team understands that the success of a 
control program is not just in the field performance, but also in the clear, proactive communication with 
all stakeholders.

Our 15+ Florida State Certified Public Health Applicators, extensive statewide fleet, and specialized 
equipment—including electric ULV sprayers, ATVs, UTVs, and drone systems—ensure we have the 
capacity, expertise, and adaptability to deliver the Avenir CDD program to the highest professional 
standards.

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Full-Service Mosquito and Midge Control Program 
Proposal 

 
 

  
Provided to: 
Avenir Community Development District, FL 

 
 

Provided by: 
Vector Disease Control International (VDCI) 
1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H 
Little Rock, AR 72202 

 
Proposal Date: 8/15/2025 
 

 

Page 126



Table of Contents 
Company History and Purpose ............................................................................................. 3 

Overview ...................................................................................................................................................3 
Areas of Operation ...................................................................................................................................4 
References .................................................................................................................................................5 

Personnel Structure and Qualifications ............................................................................... 6 

Management Approach............................................................................................................................6 
Key Personnel ............................................................................................................................................6 

Project Description ................................................................................................................. 8 

VDCI’s Knowledge of Florida Mosquitoes and Response to Disease Outbreaks ......... 8 

Performance Requirements ................................................................................................. 10 

Approach for Surveying of Mosquito Infestation ............................................................ 12 

Larval Mosquito Surveillance ................................................................................................................ 12 
Adult Mosquito Surveillance and Disease Testing ................................................................................ 14 

Mosquito Surveillance Reporting ........................................................................................ 16 

Approach to Mosquito Larvicide Program ....................................................................... 21 

Catch Basin Treatment Approach.......................................................................................................... 21 
Chemical Control Approach ................................................................................................................... 21 
Biological Control Approach .................................................................................................................. 22 

Approach to Mosquito Adulticide Program ...................................................................... 22 

Approach to Midge Control Program ................................................................................ 23 

Adult Midge Surveillance ....................................................................................................................... 23 
Aerial Larval Drone Control ................................................................................................................... 23 
Larvicide Spray Control .......................................................................................................................... 24 
Adult Midge Reduction .......................................................................................................................... 24 
Barrier Ground Spray Application ......................................................................................................... 25 

Ground Spray Reporting ..................................................................................................... 25 

Droplet and Calibration Testing ............................................................................................................ 26 
Exclusion Zones ...................................................................................................................................... 26 

Page 127



Public Education and Community Outreach .................................................................... 26 

Fee Structure and Payment Schedule ....................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Company History and Purpose 

Overview 
Vector Disease Control International (VDCI) is a nationwide mosquito and midge control service provider, 
primarily serving municipal and government agencies. As a company, we are committed to providing our 
customers with the best possible mosquito control service. We believe this dedication is evident at every 
level of our business operations. VDCI strives to improve the quality of human life in communities through 
education, surveillance, and controlling mosquitoes and other disease vectors. We are also committed to 
research and the use and support of application technologies. VDCI is built on the foundations of public 
health, ethics, professionalism, and technical expertise. At all times, we will conduct business through 
partnerships with our customers in a manner that protects the environment and the welfare of residents. 
  
Founded in 1992 with a single contract in central Arkansas, VDCI started with the simple idea of providing 
municipalities with the products and services needed to run effective mosquito control programs. VDCI has 
now combined with Mosquito Control Services (Est 1985) and has  combined company experience of over 
67 years. We currently employ over 350 full-time personnel, and over 150 seasonal-based team members. 
VDCI holds contracts in over 25 states, serving 200+ municipal and government agencies. With over 400 
spray trucks and 16 aircraft, we are well-equipped to service the most challenging mosquito control 
requirements.  
  
Given that it is often impossible to eradicate all mosquitoes due to their behavior patterns, resilient nature 
and enormous breeding potential, VDCI’s goal is to manage mosquito populations within tolerable levels 
and simultaneously help prevent possible outbreaks of mosquito-borne diseases. To achieve this goal, we 
use a combination of the most effective methods of controlling mosquitoes, including surveillance, 
biological control, and insecticides. Inspection of the treatment area, coupled with collections from 
mechanical traps, enables us to determine which mosquito species are present, their population size, and 
locations. VDCI’s scientific and data-driven approach to mosquito control is a key factor in why we are 
considered the industry leaders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 128



 
Areas of Operation 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 129



References 

Clay County, FL                 Camden County, GA  
2018 to Present     2019 to Present 
Full Integrated Program    Full Integrated Program 
477 Houston Street     200 East 4th St - PO Box 99 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043   Woodbine, GA 31569 
Annie Sheldon, IFAS Extension Director  , Jared Beaudoin Director of Public Works 
(352) 689-4400      (912) 576-3028 
aasheldon@ufl.edu     jbeaudoin@co.camden.ga.us   
       
 
Lakewood Ranch CDD-District 2, FL   Glynn County, GA 
2023 to Present      2014 to Present  
Midge Control Program    Full Integrated Program 
8175 Lakewood Ranch Blvd    1725 Reynolds Street 
Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202    Brunswick, GA 31520 
Lisa Boutote, District Manager    Danny Smith, Public Works Director 
(941) 727-0899      (912) 554-7701 
lisa.boutote@lwrtownhall.com              Danny.Smith@glynncounty-ga.gov 

 
Baldwin County, AL     Terrebonne Parish, LA 
2017 to Present     2015 to Present  
Full Integrated Program    Full Integrated Program 
312 Courthouse Sq. Ste. 12                 8026 Main St. 7th Floor 
Bay Minette, AL 36507     Houma, LA 70360 
Roger Rendlemen, County Adm.   DavidRome, Public Works Manager 
(251) 580-2550      (985) 873-6735 
Roger.Rendleman@baldwincountyal.gov  drome@tpcg.org  

 
Del Webb Oak Creek, FL    St. Charles Parish, LA 
2023 to Present     1990 to Present 
Midge Control Program    Full Integrated Program 
2970 University Parkway    15045 River Road 
Sarasota, FL 34243                                       Hahnville, LA 70057 
Sandra Reynolds, Community Manager  Matt Jewell,, Parish President . 
(941) 277-5631      (985) 783-5000 
SReynolds@AccessDifference.com   mlj@stchalesgov.net  
 

Page 130



Personnel Structure and Qualifications

Managementt Approachh  
VDCI’s senior staff consists of Medical Entomologists and Biologists with managerial experience ranging 
from five (5) to thirty (30) years in conducting area-wide mosquito abatement.  Entomologists, Biologists, 
and Field Managers work under the direct guidance of the senior staff and discuss the mosquito situation 
daily.  Field managers assign routine tasks to Biologists/Inspectors/Technicians who gather surveillance 
data, environmental conditions, and other information that allows the team to formulate the appropriate 
responses to mosquito problems when they arise. 

Keyy Personnell 

Steven Pavlovich, General Manager, Director of Field Operations  
Master of Science / Medical Entomologist – Mosquito Abatement Experience: 30+ 
years- Coordinates abatement efforts with Entomologists, Biologists and 
Operations Managers. Provides assistance for services, purchasing, public relations, 
aerial assignments and technical expertise.

Samuel Stines, Chief Biologist                                                         
Bachelor of Science Biologist – Mosquito Abatement Experience: 18+ years– 
Supervises managerial and Biological Activities, Implements County-wide IPM 
service strategies.  Assist in abatement applications and efficacy testing. 

   

Page 131



Dr. Caroline Efstathion Regional Director – Florida
Doctor of Philosophy/Entomology – Mosquito Abatement Experience: 8 years -
Pest Management Experience – 15 years. Licensed director for the state of Florida. 
Responsible for overseeing all aspects of the mosquito abatement contracts in 
Florida. Ensures that each program follows best practices for integrated mosquito 
management by ensuring workers are complying with all laws and labels, directing 
chemical treatments based on surveillance, observing all safety protocols, 
maintaining all equipment in good working order, conducting arbovirus surveillance 
and performing efficacy and resistance testing.  

Dr. Peter Obenauer Technical and Training Manager 
Doctor of Philosophy/Entomology – United States Navy, CAPTAIN (Retired).  Navy 
medical entomologist with 25+ years of experience in mosquito control and 
surveillance, technical guidance, overseas mosquito disease research and fostering 
global industry agreements. Responsible for the development of training protocols, 
SOPs, and public relations.

Lita Honsby- Florida District Manager- Bachelor of Science in Biology – 
Mosquito Abatement Experience: 10 years -Pest Management Experience – 17 
years. She is the District Manager for Florida and assists the regional director in 
overseeing all program operations, including disease response cases, and conducts 
resistance testing on all products. She ensures compliance with protected areas 
and endangered species regulations.  She is also our aquatic expert and the 
region’s drone pilot. Her licenses include Mosquito Control Florida Director’s 
Certification, Public Health Pest Control license, Aquatic Weed Control, Natural 
Areas Weed Management, Right of Ways, and US DOT FAA Remote Pilot UAS 
certificate.

Darien Williston-Florida Contract Manager –Mosquito Abatement Experience: 8 
years; Local manager responsible for management of county integrated mosquito 
program. This includes identifying larval and adult mosquitoes, promptly 
addressing service requests within two workdays, ensuring timely vehicle and 
equipment maintenance, and conducting encephalitis surveillance tasks such as 
gravid and CDC trap placement/collection. His role involves evaluating 
subordinates' performance, delegating larviciding assignments, managing truck-
based adulticiding operations, and conducting post-treatment inspections to assess 
insecticide effectiveness. He maintains records per the Department of Agriculture, 
calibrates spray equipment, and ensures proper mixing of chemicals. 

Page 132



May Pivarnik- Florida Biologist - Mosquito Management Experience- 7 years; 
Responsible for all overseeing resistance testing for all Florida contracts. 
Additionally, she oversees disease response cases and works with local staff on 
response. She also performs identification of larval and adult mosquitoes, creates 
educational PowerPoints and resource material and gives educational 
presentations to community outreach programs.  

Project Description
Vector Disease Control International (VDCI) will conduct a comprehensive Integrated Mosquito and Midge 
Management Program (IMMMP) for the Avenir Community Development District. Vector Disease Control 
International will employ established IMMMP principles and practices to dramatically reduce the number of 
larval and adult mosquitoes in the community. These principles and practices are based on a sound 
Integrated Pest Management (IPM) framework.

Monitoring and suppression of larval and adult mosquitoes, as well as midges, will be based on an 
environmentally focused, least-toxic approach that utilizes a combination of cultural, biological, and 
chemical controls to target and reduce all mosquitoes and midges, including potential disease-vector 
populations and nuisance species. This approach is economically feasible, with an emphasis on minimizing 
chemical adulticide applications.

VDCI’s Knowledge of Florida Mosquitoes and 
Response to Disease Outbreaks
Mosquitoes are important disease vectors throughout the State of Florida. Outbreaks of Zika and Dengue in 
the state have recently renewed concerns about other vector-borne diseases. Malaria was once widespread 
during the last century and while it was eradicated in the early 1950’s, imported malaria cases always remain
a concern since the malaria mosquito vector, Anopheles quadrimaculatus, is abundant throughout the state. In 
2023, 7 locally acquired cases of malaria were confirmed for the first time in Florida in 20 years. Florida’s 
semitropical climate provides an ideal environment for mosquitoes to breed. In fact, Florida has more 
species of mosquitoes compared to any other state in the Union. Currently, there are 13 genera, 22 
subgenera and 85 species and subspecies in Florida. Many of these species have been introduced in the last 
twenty years. Consistent mosquito surveillance remains paramount for early disease detection and control 
measures.  

VCDI currently operates in 14 counties throughout Florida. Moreover, VDCI maintains a contract with the 
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for emergency services after hurricanes or vector 
disease outbreaks. Our relationship with the State of Florida is close, in fact our regional director, Dr. 

Page 133



Efstathion, previously work for FDCAS as a mosquito control outreach specialist in the Entomology and 
Pest Control Section.   
 
The VDCI team has helped countless municipalities through every step of a responsible mosquito control 
plan. This preparation provides more time for the community to focus on the unexpected and natural 
results of a disaster that cannot be planned for in advance. Our team assists with local, state, and 
government coordination and other challenging aspects of emergency response mosquito control - such as 
navigating FEMA funding or preparing for community and media questions. VDCI has a long history of 
conducting emergency aerial and ground applications in response to disease outbreaks or natural disasters. 
Below is a summary of acres treated in natural disaster situations.  
 

    
    

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



Performance Requirements 
VDCI will maintain current licensing and certifications to perform commercial mosquito and midge control 
services in the State of Florida.  
 
Vector Disease Control International, LLC is currently licensed and will maintain licensing to perform 
commercial mosquito and midge control services in the State of  Florida.  
 
VDCI will meet all Federal, State and Local requirements for storage, transport, dispensing and disposal of all 
products including pesticides. 
 
Additionally, VDCI, will: 

 
1. Warrant that all services provided will be in a professional and businesslike manner.  

2. Comply with all aspects of the United States Department of Labor and the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration's regulations concerning the hazards of the chemicals utilized in performance 
of the specification.  

3. Provide entire labor staff directly, not through subcontractors, which staff shall have appropriate 
pesticide training and certification.  

4. Provide telephone, facsimile and email communications capabilities. 

5. VDCI will comply with the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and 
shall review and comply with the Community’s safety regulations while on any Community property.  
Failure to comply with any applicable federal, state or local law, rule, or regulation shall give 
Community the right to terminate this agreement for cause.  

6. VDCI will certify participation in the E-Verify Program (the electronic employment verification 
program that is authorized in 8 U.S.C. § 1324a and jointly administered by the United States 
Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration, or its successor 
program).  

A. VDCI will not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this 
public contract for services. 

B. VDCI will not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the 
Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal 
alien to perform work under this public contract for services. 

C. At the time of signing this public contract for services, VDCI has confirmed the 
employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform 
work under this public contract for services through participation in the E-Verify Program.  

D. VDCI will not use either the E-Verify Program procedures to undertake pre-employment 
screening of job applicants while this public contract for services is being performed. 

Page 135



7. Provide all employees extensive classroom and field training on issues pertaining to; Pesticide and 
Applicator Laws and Regulations, Pesticide Labels and Labeling, Pesticide Use, Applicator Safety, 
Public Safety, Environmental Protection, Integrated Pest Management, Integrated Mosquito 
Management, and Equipment Use and Calibration.  

8. Provide all employees with training on all pertinent OSHA regulations. Employees will be instructed 
on the required Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for each product, its use, care, and disposal.  
Employees will receive instruction on what to do in case of an emergency including and not limited 
to; spill procedures, vehicular accidents, personal injury, West Nile virus prevention, environmental 
protection, and public safety. This training will include spill prevention, cleanup and disposal, and 
chain of command notification requirements.   

9. Provide each employee VDCI company shirts so that they can be clearly identified as Mosquito 
Control Technicians by residents and County officials. 

10. All vehicles are owned by VDCI and commercially insured under VDCI’s master commercial 
automotive policy. All vehicles will be clearly marked with the company's name, town, state and 
telephone number. No private vehicles will be used. All employees will have proper ID at all times 
while in the field. 

11. All company vehicles used for pesticide applications are trucks, with pesticides being stored and 
secured in the truck bed separate from the passenger compartment.   

12. All trucks are equipped with a correctly rated fire extinguisher, current Safety Data Sheets for all 
carried products, current labels for all carried products, employee first aid kit, and chemical 
spill/recovery kit. 

13. Provide Labels and SDS for all products used by the company upon request. 

14. Provide General Liability/Auto/Workers Compensation insurance policy as required, with a 
minimum comprehensive of $1 million per occurrence general liability, claims-made policy, 
including chemical and pollution coverage.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 136



Approach for Surveying of Mosquito Infestation 

Larval Mosquito Surveillance 
The purpose of inspection and surveillance in a mosquito control program is to define the problem in terms 
of type, extent, and location. Since the problem is biological, it is dynamic and requires almost constant 
input and analysis of data. This information-gathering effort is directed to both mosquito larvae and adults, 
but while the techniques and objectives employed in tracking these life forms differ considerably, VDCI has 
the professional and technical expertise to perform these duties.   
 
Mosquito Larvae 
Our larval inspection program aims to locate, map, and catalog 
active mosquito breeding sites. Although it is an ongoing process, 
the long-range goal of this program phase is to locate and record 
all major canals and marsh breeding sites in Avenir. This 
information makes it possible to quickly return to breeding sites 
following a rainfall event and effect control.  It is, quite simply, a 
technique that makes the overall program more effective and 
efficient.   
 
 
At the request of Avenir Community Development District, VDCI’s larval surveillance efforts will be 
focused on the following potential breeding sites: 
 

Permanent Water sites consist of habitats that remain inundated for an extended period of time. 
These sites include lakes, rivers, retention ponds, swamps, bottom lands, etc. Permanent water sites 
will be inspected routinely throughout the mosquito breeding season. These areas can produce large 
numbers of various species of mosquitoes such as Culex spp., Anopheles quadramaculatus, An. crucians, 
and Coquilletidia perturbans.  

Temporary Floodwater is standing water that may exist for short periods after high water or 
rainfall. Examples of this habitat would include bottom lands, woodland pools, swales (low areas), 
irrigated pastures, drainage ditches, tire ruts, and sub-water. Large numbers of mosquitoes can be 
produced in a short period of time from these sites. These areas will be inspected for larvae as soon 
as possible after every substantial rainfall. Mosquitoes expected to be found at these sites include 
Aedes vexans, Aedes canadensis, Psorophora columbiae, Ps. howardii, Ps. ciliata, Ps. ferox.  

Artificial Containers/Tree Holes/Ornamental Plants are considered one of the most 
troublesome problems a mosquito control operation faces. Artificial containers may occur 
throughout the control area and produce mosquitoes in every backyard. Anything that holds water 
can produce artificial container species. Old tires, cans, bottles, buckets, cups, pet water bowls, 
birdbaths, gutters, and swimming pools are some of the more common artificial containers. From 
this type of habitat comes some of the most troublesome pest species. Some species that occur in 
artificial containers include Aedes albopictus, Ae. Aegypti, Cx. restuans, Cx. erraticus, Ochlerotatus triseriatus, 

Page 137



Orthopodomyia signifera, and Toxorhynchites rutilus septentrionalis. As private and public properties are 
inspected, container habitats will be checked and removed/emptied as needed.  

Septic Water Habitats occur when water holding areas become polluted with high organic matter 
levels. This habitat includes oxidation ponds, ditches with sewage discharge or runoff from decaying 
plant or animal life, and wastewater treatment plants. Septic water can often produce the most 
significant number of mosquitoes per area unit. Culex quinquefasciatus and Cx. restuans are often the 
most common species found in this habitat and are also the primary vector for West Nile virus in 
the United States. Routine management of this habitat type enhances the control of arboviral 
vectors and is vital to the public’s health.  

Storm Drains and Catch Basins occur throughout urban areas and can breed numerous mosquito 
species. Of primary concern in these habitats is Cx. quinquefasciatus and Cx. restuans, the primary 
vectors of West Nile virus. Although all catch basins may hold water at some point, not all are sites 
of prolific mosquito breeding. Improper drainage, poor design, and amount of rainfall can all 
contribute to the number of mosquitoes produced in catch basins. Storm drains and catch basins 
will be visually assessed for mosquito breeding and where appropriate treated.  

 
Identify Sites 
The inspection for and mapping of mosquito breeding sites will be aided by Global Positioning System 
(GPS) and GIS technology. Hand-held Field and Truck-Mounted Tablet Computers will allow crews to 
record breeding locations precisely and will guide the return visit and re-inspection of the site. These 
systems will be combined to create a database of mosquito breeding sites. VDCI intends to employ four of 
these devices to record and identify sites. The resulting data will then be used in determining larvicide and 
adulticide needs as well as in evaluation of said treatments.  
 
 
Site Inspections 
Inspection of mosquito breeding sites will be conducted weekly, 
addressing all known or suspected locations routinely as directed by 
rainfall, tidal movement, and mosquito activity trends.  Inspections will 
be performed using standard mosquito survey techniques.  
Representative samples will be collected and identified to genus; fourth 
instar larvae will be identified to species whenever possible. Records of 
these inspections will show larvae density as a series of ranges per dip. 
Additional data such as water depth, water type, larval genus, 
developmental stage and treatment type will also be recorded when 
pertinent.  The resulting data will determine the needed larviciding and 
adulticiding response.   
 
Since rainfall is a major factor in hatching floodwater mosquito eggs, 
data on rainfall events is essential. This information, used to guide 
inspectors to mosquito breeding areas most likely to be flooded, will be 
collected each week from various rain gauges located in representative 
sites throughout the community. 
 

Page 138



Observing plant type as an indicator of both positive and potential mosquito breeding locations may 
provide supplemental larval surveillance direction.  

Adultt Mosquitoo Surveillancee andd Diseasee Testingg 
Our programs strive to use scientific guidance for our operations prior to any chemical applications, and we 
rely on several industry-standard surveillance traps to obtain this data. Since different mosquito species are 
attracted to different trap types, using a variety of traps allows us to ensure we are capturing the full diversity 
of mosquito species within the community. Below is a description of the traps we recommend for Avenir
and the rationale behind their purposes, which will ideally help you understand how we determine when and 
where spray missions are needed to protect your citizens. Traps will operate weekly throughout the year.   

CDC Light Trap:
Experience has shown that light traps are an efficient and productive 
means of collecting mosquitoes, both in consideration of the numbers of 
individuals captured and the diversity of species represented.  Most often 
host-seeking females are collected in these traps who are attracted to the 
trap by the light and carbon dioxide (CO2), which simulates the exhaled 
respiratory gases of birds or mammals. These traps are also used to 
establish baseline levels for any emergency mosquito control work and 
are required by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services (FDACS). We will utilize three (3) CDC traps throughout the 
Community. 

BG – Sentinel Trap:
BG Sentinel traps target daytime feeding mosquitoes, such as Aedes aegypti
and Ae. ablopictus when supplemented with the BG lure. These traps are 
the industry standard for collecting these two domestic disease vectoring 
species since they are not readily attracted to light traps. We will use two
(2) BG Sentinel Traps throughout the Community.  

  

Page 139



Gravid Trap: 
Gravid traps are best for collecting vector mosquitoes for disease testing, 
such as Culex species. These traps use an infusion water that attracts 
female mosquitoes looking for a place to oviposit (lay eggs) and they are 
collected in the trap. Since these mosquitoes have taken a blood meal 
already, they are more likely to be infected with a virus and collected 
females are sent off to be tested for West Nile virus and Eastern Equine 
Encephalitis virus. Three (3) Gravid Traps will be utilized throughout the 
Community.  
  

. 

Diseasee Testing:: 

Mosquito Pool Testing
A subsample of mosquitoes captured in the gravid and light traps will 
be sent to the Research Associates Laboratory to test for the endemic 
viruses, West Nile and Eastern Equine Encephalitis (EEE). Sample 
results are typically reported back in 24 to 48 hours once they arrive at 
the lab. Test results will be reported monthly. Additionally, if there are 
travel related or locally acquired cases of an exotic, such as Dengue, 
Zike, Chikungunya or Yellow Fever, reported within the County, vector 
mosquito species, Aedes aegypti and Ae. albopictus collected from BG 
Sentinel traps will be sent to test for these viruses. 

Ovitrap or Little Black Jar:
Ovitraps will be used to assess the adult populations of container 
breeding Aedes mosquitoes. These devices, which capture the 
eggs of several Aedes mosquitoes, including the vectors for
Dengue and Zika, Ae. aegypti and Ae. albopictus, act as a 
supplemental surveillance technique for these mosquitoes since 
they are not readily attracted to light traps. Six (6) of these 
ovitraps will be used throughout the Community. 

Page 140



Virus Case Response
VDCI will activate our expanded disease protocol upon notification of a 
human mosquito borne disease case within Avenir, a domestic animal 
case (horse/donkey/emu), a positive mosquito sample or a sentinel 
chicken positive for viral antibodies. We will notify the Community
immediately and, upon authorization from the Community , shall enact a 
viral transmission suppression plan. Every disease case is unique and 
depending on whether the virus is endemic or exotic will require specific 
procedures, however the basic protocol will be as follows. The vicinity of 
a human case, trapping site, or animal, or chicken coop location will 

serve as the epicenter from which inspection, sampling, and control efforts will radiate. Personnel 
will be assigned to inspect the immediate area surrounding the epicenter and to continue outward 
for an approximate five city block area depending upon the geographic location, the topography, 
and the surrounding conditions. The purpose of the search will be to locate vector mosquito (Culex 
quinquefasciatus, the Southern House Mosquito, Aedes aegypti, the Yellow Fever Mosquito and/or 
Aedes albopictus, the Asian Tiger) breeding sites. Source reduction will be performed by dumping out 
water from any containers. If water cannot be eliminated, then water with larvae or standing water 
that can allow breeding will be treated with larvicide or by releasing mosquito fish. While the exact 
address of the infected person, trapping site, or animal location will not be divulged, residents in the 
area will be made aware that there is a heightened potential for infection in their neighborhood and 
that personal protection and yard sanitation is required. This will be done by distributing door 
hangers and other informative literature within an approximate five city block radius of the 
epicenter. During the evening hours, truck mounted sprayers will be assigned to spray the area 
radiating from the epicenter in an effort to reduce the vector population below the critical level as 
noted in the expanded surveillance portion this proposal. The efficacy of this operation will be 
determined using Gravid Traps and/or other suitable trapping methods. Specimens collected will be 
submitted to a Research Associates Laboratory and/or tested in-house. Elevated control efforts will 
continue until follow-up samples test negative and vector mosquitoes are below threshold population 
levels.

Mosquito Surveillance Reporting
All reports will be submitted in the manner described below: 

Monthly Reports: 
The monthly activity report will include information on adulticide and larvicide activities, including month 
to date and year to date totals, encephalitis monitoring results, light trap/landing rate data, and citizen 
complaints. Ground adulticiding data will include the areas sprayed, total number of miles treated, truck 
nights, and name of chemical used. Larviciding data reported will include the mosquito breeding areas 
sprayed expressed as square feet of surface water and the name of the biochemical used. Service 
request/citizen complaint report will show the numbers of each type of request (adulticide, larvicide, pools, 
and minnows) as well as a list of requests received and their response. 

Page 141



A brief narrative will accompany the report documents summarizing the mosquito population, control 
efforts, and any unusual conditions or viral activity, if applicable.   

Annual Reports: 
VDCI will submit an annual report summarizing the conditions, data collected and control operations 
performed during the year. Some examples of our reports are shown below:

Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Mosquito Identification Experience & Equipment
VDCI and its affiliated companies have had considerable first-hand experience in disease surveillance and 
suppression.  Over the last two decades in 
providing encephalitis surveillance and 
suppression for our clients, VDCI discovered 
that the virus for West Nile can be active year-
round in the southern region. In response to 
this, we provide surveillance for West Nile 
Virus, Eastern Equine Encephalitis, and St. 
Louis Encephalitis in each our southern 
programs year around and not just during the 
peak mosquito season.   

Mosquito Identification is a standard process in VDCI’s 
Integrated Mosquito Management (IMM) programs. Please refer 
to the report graphics provided above in the “Adult Mosquito 
Trapping & Reporting Experience” section. As this report   
shows, we provide our customers with a report that includes not 
only the total count of each trap, but also an identification overview of the specific mosquito species. 

Methodology for Subsampling Large Mosquito Catches
VDCI biologists typically identify each of the specimens collected in adult mosquito trapping program 
individually and to species.  If, however, a collection for a unique site is extremely large and contains more 
than an estimated 500 individuals, then the taxonomist will calculate the amount and make of the collection
using a sub-sample.  This will be done by dividing the collection into four equal parts, counting and 
identifying each of the individuals in one of the four parts and then multiplying the resultant data obtained 
from the individual part by four to estimate the species composition and density in the collection. This is a 
more accurate method than what is recommended by scientific research (Jaworski et al., 2019; Comparative 
analysis of subsampling methods for large mosquito samples).

                                                                                                                                                    

Page 145



Approach to Mosquito Larvicide Program 
VDCI and its affiliated companies conduct comprehensive and dynamic Integrated Pest Management (IPM) 
programs that rely on scientific evidence and justification for all chemical applications. This ensures we are 
acting conscientiously to protect human health and quality of life while minimizing any unnecessary harm to 
the environment and non-target organisms. Using the mentioned 
surveillance data, citizen requests, and extensive knowledge of the 
region we can then implement the following actions to manage 
mosquitoes in their aquatic, juvenile stages.     
 
VDCI will perform random Quality Control field checks of previously 
inspected and/or treated larval sites. Quality Control inspections will 
be conducted regularly to ensure technician performance and pesticide 
efficacy  The Operations Manager or designated Quality Control 
Technician will also review data sheet entries to verify that sites are 
being inspected in accordance with site status and that larval control 
products are being applied according to habitat and water source 
information. Operational maps will be ground-verified to ensure 
accuracy and data collection will be screened prior to final submittal, 
in order to eliminate input error. It is understood the use of 
larvicide/pupacide mineral oils represents a less than timely 
application and VDCI will have a target usage of less than 5% of area 
treated.                                   
                                                                                                                                      
The preferred and first line of defense in our program is larviciding. Using predictors such as rainfall, 
temperature, species seasonality, etc., our inspectors search for and proficiently find breeding habitats. After 
accessing multiple factors, such as, mosquito life cycle stage, organic composition of the breeding site, and 
most importantly the ecosystem and non-target organisms which could be impacted by our course of action, 
we select the most appropriate control method. These methods are described below.  
 
Catch Basin Treatment Approach 
All catch basins will be treated with a 30-day residual catch-basin briquet throughout the mosquito season. 
This EPA-approved product will be applied at a rate of one briquet/basin on a 30-day cycle. For each basin 
that is treated, a GPS point will be recorded via a handheld Garmin.  
 
Chemical Control Approach 
Methoprene  
Residual Control Agents Methoprene or Altosid is an insect growth regulator which prevents the larvae 
of mosquitoes from becoming adults by imitating the insects' natural juvenile hormone. Methoprene can 
provide extended control in permanent water, as well as temporary breeding pools and is also low 
in toxicity to non-target organisms. VDCI plans to utilize Methoprene products in breeding sites, such as 
catch basins, septic sites and permanent water sites suited to its use. 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



Biological Control Approach 
In areas of the County where chemical larvicides are not approved or are environmentally sensitive, VDCI 
will utilize a number of biological control initiatives. They include the following: 

Bacillus thuringiensis israelensis (Bti) and Bacillus sphaericus 
In areas where the use of mosquitofish is not advisable, but where larviciding is practical, application of 
naturally occurring bacteria such as Bacillus thuringiensis israelensis (Bti), Bacillus sphaericus (BS H5a5b) will be 
used.  Bacillus thuringiensis israelensis (Bti) was discovered in 1976 in a riverbed pond in Israel.  This gram-
positive, spore-forming aerobic bacterium produces toxins during sporulation.  Once ingested by the 
mosquito larva, these toxins bind to the midgut (stomach) lining, destroying it and leading to mosquito 
death within 24 -48 hrs.  Bacillus sphaericus is very similar to Bti, however can provide better residual activity 
in organically enriched habitats compared to its cousin. 

Approach to Mosquito Adulticide Program 
 
The primary means of applying EPA-approved chemicals 
from ground level to control adult mosquitoes will be via 
vehicle-mounted ultra-low volume (ULV) sprayers. Vehicles 
each outfitted with gas-powered ULV sprayers with flow 
control systems that use ground speed sensors to adjust the 
chemical flow rate to the vehicle speed with three pre-
programmed rates will be used.  
 
Except for ATV’s and off-road vehicles, sprayers will be 
fitted with GPS control devices that will be linked to an 
onboard, in cab, computer system for operation and data 
recording. Each spray vehicle will be equipped with a map and tracking system to report time, location, 
speed and vehicle direction, as well as indicating when the sprayer was actively spraying and when it was not 
spraying. Records generated will be available for inspection by the Community staff during normal business 
hours. These vehicles will also be outfitted with a communication system, so the driver may contact the 
Night Supervisor and/or Program Manager. All spray vehicles will be marked for identification.  
 
When directed by the County, VDCI will provide spray operations during certain holiday celebrations or 
gatherings to knock-down adult populations. The exact area to be sprayed from the ground for control of 
adult mosquitoes must be determined by the extent and duration of the problem encountered as indicated 
by the surveillance phase of this program and the necessity to reduce the mosquito population to acceptable 
levels. The Operations Manager will be responsible for scheduling and communicating with the staff 
assigned to operate the adulticide night trucks. Based on the Board of Health’s recommendation, we will 
initiate truck mounted ULV applications, weather permitting. All chemical applications will be applied in 
accordance with the label and thereby the law. The pesticides used will be limited to those approved by 
Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and include products such as Permanone 30-30, Mosquito 
Mist and Fyafanon, and in the case of Barrier Treatments; Talstar, Suspend, and Bifenthrin.  

Page 147



Approach to Midge Control Program

Adultt Midgee Surveillancee 

Managing Midge Fly populations to acceptable levels requires an integrated approach
between larval applications for immatures, chemical applications to eliminate adults, and
surveillance to ascertain if the treatment is effective. Surveillance is the key to quantifying
whether the chemical applications are effective.

Once a problem is diagnosed, a chemical application is made, after which adult surveillance
is carried out to monitor adult populations. Once a certain threshold for adult midges is met, 
then truck-based applications can take place to reduce numbers back to acceptable levels.

The following trap will be used throughout the Community. 

New Jersey Light Trap
New Jersey light traps work by having a high 
watt light source housed in the metal frame, with a
powerful fan underneath. Since adult midges are 
strongly attracted to light they fly towards the trap and
get pulled by the fan into a collection jar. VDCI 
proposes collecting specimens from two traps
weekly located at strategic placements around the
community. 

Aeriall Larvall Dronee Controll 
VDCI proposes to provide a drone-based larval abatement application to large ponds located in the 
community with EPA-approved Strike® Midge Control Pellet product. VDCI will perform several 
applications throughout the year, as guided by surveillance around the perimeters of pond in order to ensure 
effective suppression of the midge population throughout the season. 

Page 148



Drones (UAVs) have a great number of advantages over 
traditional applications with fixed-wing aircraft. The drone 
will be operated at a maximum height of 20-40 feet above
the water and flies at much slower speeds than fixed-wing 
aircraft. This method of operation minimizes the risk of 
potential injuries/incidences and increases multiple safety 
factors for the customer. Due to a quadcopter UAV’s ability 
to maneuver precisely in any direction and speed, it offers 
the unique ability to provide precision application of the 
product. This ensures the highest level of efficacy and also
significantly decreases the risk of any chemical drift or 

misapplication. Our UAVs are battery powered which allows them to be much quieter and mechanically 
simpler than aircraft. The drone is primarily operated through AI-pathing which increases the accuracy and 
consistency of the product application as well. A highly trained and FAA-certified pilot will be the
primary operator of the UAV. Additionally, a trained Visual Observer (VO) will be on-site to assist the
Pilot-In-Command (PIC).

Larvicidee Sprayy Controll 

For smaller ponds, larval treatments will be conducted and applied via ATV and/or backpack using 30-day 
residual products such as Strike® Midge Control Pellet or Vectobac 12AS liquid. 

Adultt Midgee Reduction

When adult midge populations do exceed acceptable thresholds, a chemical application will be made. Truck-
based chemical applications are an important part of any Integrated Pest Management (IPM) program for 
midges, but should not be the focal point. Rather, it is meant to supplement larviciding efforts for optimal 
program effectiveness. The primary means of applying chemicals from ground level to control adult midge 
will be via vehicle-mounted ultra-low volume (ULV) sprayers. A vehicle outfitted with heavy duty ULV 
sprayers equipped with flow control systems that use ground speed sensors to adjust the 
chemical flow rate to the vehicle speed with three pre-programmed rates will be used. Spray 
vehicles will be fitted with GPS control devices that will be linked to an onboard, in cab,
computer system for operation and data recording. Each spray vehicle will be equipped with 
a map and tracking system to report time, location, speed and direction, and indicate when the sprayer was 
actively spraying and when it was not. 

VDCI plans to rotate chemicals for ULV truck-based adulticiding. Using different active ingredients is 
crucial towards maintaining an effective approach. Since midge generation cycles are rapid, they can start to 
develop resistances after only a few pesticide application cycles. In order to continue to see effective 

Page 149



knockdown rates, VDCI plans to use multiple chemicals. All chemical applications will be applied in 
accordance with the approved Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) label and thereby the law. 
The rotational products that will be used will include the following MosquitoMist 1.5 , Permanone 30-30, 
and DeltaGuard. 
 

Barrier Ground Spray Application 
 

 

Ground Spray 
Reporting 
VDCI has been on the forefront in 
using technology and has developed a 
proprietary database that is built on 
the foundations of an IPM program. 
Our database is for exclusive use in 
VDCI programs and partner agencies. 
It allows a user to quickly and 
effortlessly gain access to assess the 
mosquito surveillance and spray 
control activities within a given area. 
This database produces reports that 
provide both detail and summary level 
information for all program activities. 
An example of a ground adulticide 
application report is to the right. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



Droplet and Calibration Testing 
ULV truck mounted sprayers will be checked before each use for correct chemical application rate, and 

recalibrated if necessary. This will be accomplished by pre and post 
product weight comparisons, as well as, onboard computer analysis.  
In addition, a Droplet Spectrum Analysis will be performed 
routinely during the mosquito season to monitor droplet size 
generation.  The analysis will be performed by an Ames DC-III/ 
DC-IV unit, a computer driven device developed by the U.S. Army 
to rapidly and accurately calculate droplet spectrums. All of our 
adulticide trucks operate using ULV sprayers, which are calibrated 
and droplet tested routinely to ensure optimal and accurate chemical 
applications. Only EPA-approved chemicals are dispersed at well 
below the allowed rate established by the EPA. Additionally, we 

conduct annual efficacy testing to monitor the effectiveness of our pesticide products and avoid chemical 
resistance.  
 
Our trained entomologists can decipher incredibly useful data by speciation from the trap collections and 
field inspections described above, such as: breeding habitat, preferred blood source, peak activity time, 
migration pattern and range, disease-capability, chemical susceptibility, among other things. On a daily basis, 
we think through all these factors and only then assign adulticide truck spray routes that we believe will 
allow us to effectively address the pestiferous and disease-capable vectors at the exact location and time and 
with the appropriate chemical.  
 
Exclusion Zones 
In addition to the previously described factors that guide when and where our adulticide trucks spray, there 
are a few other considerations for protecting the environment and accommodating public wishes. 
 
Should any citizen not want to have their property sprayed, we respect a 300-foot spray buffer zone where 
no adulticide chemical will be applied. The property owner can make the request for consideration of 
beehives, organic gardens, protection of pollinators, chemical sensitivity, personal preference, or without any 
given reason at all.  
 
Exclusion zones are logged into our GPS system which provides night truck drivers visual and audio alerts, 
as well as physical maps to ensure these areas are addressed or protected. The truck routes are reviewed the 
following morning to confirm the accuracy and effectiveness of the spray.  
  

Public Education and Community Outreach 
 Many of the mosquito problems encountered within the Avenir Community Development District, as 
elsewhere, are the result of man-made mosquito breeding sites. Often these problems can be corrected with 
minimal effort by residents simply emptying standing water from flowerpots, boats, rain gutters, trash, etc. 
This is particularly true in the control of the Southern House Mosquito (Culex quinquefasciatus), an important 
disease vector, and the potential vectors the Asian Tiger Mosquito (Aedes albopictus) & the Yellow Fever/ 

Page 151



Zika Mosquito (Aedes aegypti), which breed readily in almost 
any water holding container. Using several interactive 
PowerPoint presentations developed by our educational 
outreach team with the help of a public relations firm, 
VDCI has been able to effectively convey material to 
schools, civic associations, Little League (baseball) and 
other sporting events, network television/radio, and general 
meetings.  VDCI utilizes several group specific 
presentations to increase public awareness of mosquitoes, 

their breeding sites, and the diseases they transmit.  
Individuals with experience in the education field are employed to present our message to the public.  At the 
request of the Avenir, VDCI will conduct presentations at schools, fairs, festivals, civic groups, and 
public/private schools. 

VDCI shall prepare, on an as-needed basis, press releases, flyers and other written public information 
materials to be disseminated via distribution to media, civic associations and schools.  An example of one of 
our flyers or trifolds is below: 

Z

Page 152



 
 
 
We shall also prepare Public Service Announcements and/or represent the mosquito control program on 
radio/television broadcasts and contract the use of commercial radio.  We shall produce and record 30-
second and/or 60-second radio “spots” informing the public of such things as avoidance of mosquito borne 
viruses, elimination of mosquito breeding on their property and/or other mosquito related announcements.  
These spots shall be aired in July and/or August over commercial radio stations transmitting across the area.   

 
VDCI will maintain a toll-free Mosquito Hotline telephone number, that will accept residents’ 
phone calls regarding mosquito annoyance complaints, service requests and information requests.  
VDCI will respond appropriately to all calls within 24-hours and will provide information, 
educational materials or on-site inspections on a case-by-case basis. 
VDCI will work with local news media regarding the mosquito control program and general 
mosquito and vector control issues, as approved by the Community. VDCI will advertise our 
MosquitoLine "hot-line" number when requested by the community. 

 
Innovative Programs: Over the years VDCI has worked with counties and municipalities on public events 
to supply educational information, personnel, larval and adult mosquito specimens, display equipment, such 

Page 153



as, light traps, microscopes, signs, etc.  Our staff is enthusiastic about public education and outreach, and we 
have programs to suit a variety of groups and audiences. 
 
Technology: www.vdci.net has been a leading internet website in the United States for several years when it 
comes to providing up-to-date, factual, and comprehensive information on mosquito biology and control, 
mosquito-borne disease, pesticides, and many other issues relating to mosquitoes.  We continually update 
our website with new information as it becomes available, and our staff have a series of educational blog 
articles covering a variety of mosquito and vector related topics. 

Community Outreach: VDCI and its affiliated entities provide our clients with a means of informing the 
public about mosquito biology and disease, personal protection measures, what residents can do to reduce 
mosquito problems around the home, and what is being done for as part of the County Mosquito 
Abatement Program. Our educational outreach is performed using a diverse approach, a s detailed in the 
following methods: 

Community Events  
Classroom and Citizen Academy Presentations   
County Fairs 

 
Below are examples and pictures depicting our presence at several events –  

County Fairs – Clay County, Florida 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 154



Citizens Academy – Sumter County, Florida 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 155



Standard Materials at Community Events Include –  

Printed literature 
Poster boards with information about the mosquito lifecycle, potential breeding habitats, public 
health concerns, proactive personal protection measures, descriptions of Mosquito Control 
activities, and resources available for more information 
Live mosquito larvae in emergence chambers educate not only adults, but importantly children, on 
how to identify breeding habitats in their community to reinforce concepts such as “Tip n Toss” 
Microscopes for observation of adult mosquitoes under slides caught in our local traps 
Mosquito mask decorating for the kids, so we can engage them in a fun way while sharing 
information like proper insect repellant applications and also letting parents know when and how 
Mosquito Control can be reached for service requests, etc.  

Standard Materials at Presentations Include -   

Printed literature.  
Tailored PowerPoint Presentations and posterboards specific to the age/organization 
demographics. 
Biology and ecosystem workbooks with rotating interactive stations for mask decorating, live bugs 
in emergence chambers for lessons on identification, an outdoor scavenger hunt to identify and 
dump out common breeding containers.  
Surveillance traps, larvicide equipment, and spray truck demonstrations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 156



 

 
 

Pricing Sheet: 
Integrated Mosquito & Midge Management Program 

Avenir Community Development District 
October 1, 2025-September 30, 2026 

Item                                            Description 
 
Surveillance/Reporting 

*Mosquito and Midge surveillance will be conducted year-round and populations 
will be monitored with the following traps:  
(5) Light traps to include New Jersy, CDC and/or Dynatraps; (3) Gravid Traps; (6) 
Ovitraps; (2) BG traps 
*Provide monthly and annual reports of surveillance data. 
* Routine visual surveillance for breeding sites.
*Provide pre/post-application reports and maps. 

Ground Mosquito 
Adulticiding 

* Applications will be conducted when surveillance data shows mosquito 
populations have exceeded action thresholds.  
We anticipate conducting up to 60 truck missions per year. 
* Two ULV insecticides (80:20) will be used to prevent resistance  

Ground Mosquito Larviciding  * Larvicide application by ATV or backpack as needed to permanent or temporary 
water sources 
* Treatment of catch basin during the mosquito breeding season 

Provide (2) types of larvicides to provide residual control 
Midge Control Services *Larvicide application by drone, ATV or backpack to lake perimeters as needed 

*Barrier Application where appropriate as needed 
*ULV truck application year-round as directed by surveillance 

Public Education / Outreach * Maintain a toll-free mosquito hotline telephone number, that will accept 
resident phone calls regarding mosquito and midge annoyance complaints. 
* When requested, develop presentations, brochures, fact sheets and provide 
other educational materials to residents.  

Total Annual Program Cost for Avenir:             $389,378.52      

Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Event Permit Request


Contact Name:   Rick Wollman         Email: rwollman1218@gmail.com

Anticipated Number of Attendance: 200. 

Telephone: 845-536-6799


Description of Event

Event Title:  Avenir 5K Fun Run & Walk. 

Location:  Regency at Avenir

Date of Event: March 15, 2026

Event Hours: 8:30 AM - 10:30 AM


1.  Check Sent

2. Liability Insurance: Attached

3. N/A

4. No road closure

5. N/A


Page 161



From: Leslie Namad
To: Jason Pierman; Rebecca Pavich
Subject: Avenir Somerset Charter School
Date: Friday, August 22, 2025 12:50:10 PM

Hello Jason,

A group of us are putting together a 1st Annual turkey trot Avenir 5K Run fundraiser for the
Somerset Charter school at Avenir. We are residents of Coral Isle, Panther, Apex and Le
Terre. We would like to request permission on November 22nd from 8AM to 11Am. 

We would love participation within the community as well as the new businesses that are
coming in. 
Is there any chance you could share the new business info so we could reach out to see if they
would like to participate in a sponsorship to promote themselves? 

Please let us know how to proceed. 

I have included our principle Becky on this email. 

Thank you,
Leslie Wilson 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



HSQ GROUP, LLC 
Engineers • Planners

 

 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Northlake Blvd / 140th Ave Intersection Temporary Design 
 And regrading the main entrance at Avenir 

Supplemental Agreement 19

Page 288



Regrading the main entrance at Avenir

TOTAL -                                          22,195$                     

TOTAL 

Acceptance of Proposal: 

HSQ Group, LLC. 
Avenir Development LLC 

Nour Shehadeh 

Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Monthly Managers Report
August 28, 2025

Date of Report: 8/20/2025    __Submitted by: Richard Salvatore

o Completed Tasks
2025 CDD Handbook has been submitted for review/revisions/approval
Children’s Summer camp, provided by play academy, has concluded.
Post summer camp; A professional carpet cleaning has been completed in the event hall 
by Stanley Steemer.
Deep cleaning of the entire fitness facility has been completed.
A leak in the condenser coil for the event hall HVAC RTU was identified and repaired.
The attached playground shade, which was damaged during the hurricane/tornado, has 
been replaced.

o Ongoing Tasks
See attached proposals for recommended “coffee station” in the clubhouse.

No feasible option for “vending machine” style coffee machine. Clubhouse 
budget will have to absorb the cost of supplies and maintenance unless this I 
budgeted in as a new line item.

See attached proposals for new, branded, “Gym Rules”, “Pickleball Rules”, and “Tennis 
Rules” signs.

o Future Items / Items For Consideration
Proposal from automatic access to add an additional Access Control touch point on the 
clubhouse front door, increasing the security and potentially eliminating the need for 
late night staffing, and/or allowing for later clubhouse access “after hours”.

~ $4,058 for all material and Labor
Proposal from automatic access to add additional security cameras on the exterior of 
the clubhouse, increasing monitoring and security of amenities.

~ $21,068 for all material and Labor
Proposals for spare pumps for the coconut entry feature have been received. 2 
Proposals; 1 for exact matches, 1 for cheaper options with exact same specs and 
footprint. PUSH TO 25-26

Exact Matches: $13,387 for (4) 3HP Pentair pumps
Alternate Option: $5,010 for (4) 3HP XtremePower US Pumps
Per boards recommendation; Working to get a proposal to see if retrofitting is 
possible, so ALL fountain pumps are the same size/brand for easy stock 
keeping.

Troubleshooting to identify faulty exterior lights has been completed. 27 in total were 
identified. PUSH TO 25-26

Quote received from Boston Electric: $9,656
Pushing until 2025-2026 budget year due to budget constraints.

Page 302



o Resident Recommendations
Residents have inquired about adjusting the schedule of the tennis and pickleball courts 
from the current 8 AM open time to a 7 AM open time, since the access control 
expansion is now installed.
Residents have inquired about adjusting the clubhouse open time from a hard 8 AM, to 
a softer and fluctuating “sunrise” time, to allow for early morning swimming.

If the board is interested in adjusting the clubhouse open time; We would 
recommend a 7 AM open time, which would cover close to “sunrise” for the 
majority of the year.

Residents have recommended the addition of “Gym Rules”, “Tennis Rules”, and 
“Pickleball Rules” signage in the corresponding areas to help with policy adherence, self 
policing, and fair usage of amenities.

Proposal attached for each individual sign.
Residents have recommended the addition of a small “library” where community books 
can be purchased, donated, and placed for resident enjoyment while they use the 
facility.

A search for a small bookshelf, matching the existing clubhouse furniture, is 
underway to accommodate this request.
The bookshelf would be placed in the clubroom, to compliment the current 
seating arrangement with the couches.

Page 303



Lifestyle Directors Report

Date of Report:8/20/2025                                          Submitted by: Patrice Chiaramonte

June 25, 2025, Adult Comedy Show

The clubhouse hosted a comedy show featuring Kira Soltanovich and Flip Shultz. More than 80 patrons 
attended this adult comedy event, which included a cash bar and complimentary light bites.

July 4, 2025, 4th Independence Day Pool Party 

The clubhouse came alive for the Independence Day BBQ Party. Over 100 patrons enjoyed obstacle 
courses, life-size outdoor games, and a complimentary BBQ lunch provided by Earl’s Slow and Low. 
Crafts and goodies were available for the kids, while adults enjoyed the cash bar.

Page 304



July 13, 2025 Complimentary Bay Play for Patrons

The clubhouse partnered with The Nest in Palm Beach Gardens for a complimentary Bay Play event. The 
Nest generously offered their top floor exclusively to Avenir patrons, and more than 50 patrons attended 
this private family-friendly outing. Thank you to City of Palm beach Gardens for this lovely event! 

July 25, 2025, Movie Night Under the Stars

An outdoor movie night featured Spiderman Homecoming. More than 30 patrons attended, enjoying 
complimentary s’mores, popcorn, and snacks under the stars.

August 6, 2025, Second Bay Play of the Summer Event!

Hosted on the top floor of The Nest, Over 100 patrons attended, enjoying complimentary play and a 
complimentary dinner provided by Xfinity. 

Page 305



August 8, 2025, Cozy Indoor Movie Night

An indoor movie night was held due to weather, featuring K-Pop. Over 50 patrons attended, and 
complimentary snacks were provided for the kids.

August 9, 2025, the “Aloha August” Pool Party

This event was a fun back-to-school send-off! More than 100 patrons enjoyed music from a DJ, a cash 
bar, and a buffet for purchase provided by The Nest. Kids games, and crafts were provided as well. 

Page 306



August 11th, School Supply Drive 

The Back-to-School Drive collected and donated supplies directly to the Palm Beach County school 
system over 20 patrons donated to this great cause. 

Summerween Craft Week

During the Northlake closure week, “Summerween” kids’ crafts were offered daily in the kids’ room. 
More than 50 patrons participated in these craft activities during the week. The clubhouse also hosted a 
Summer Camp run by Play Academy, which took place from June through August and was a fabulous 
amenity for the community.

Page 307



Looking ahead, upcoming events include an outdoor movie night on August 22 featuring Pirates of the 
Caribbean with complimentary s’mores and popcorn. On September 1, patrons can celebrate Labor Day 
with a poolside party complete with a DJ, grilled bites, and summer fun. September 12 will feature a 
family karaoke night, followed by sunset yoga on September 17, which will be complimentary for patrons 
and include snacks and wellness swag. On September 27, an adult happy hour and movie night will be 
held featuring To Catch a Thief: A Night on the Riviera. This event will offer a cash bar, charcuterie, and 
an upscale atmosphere for patrons to enjoy.

In addition to special events, Avenir continues to provide ongoing programs and amenities for patrons. 
Toddler music classes are offered every Friday by Rhythm & Hues, while Studio Five 6 hosts kids’ art 
classes twice a month. Tennis and pickleball clinics and classes are available through Play Academy, and 
Mele Fitness provides group fitness classes as well as private training. Swimming classes are also 
available for patrons  

Thank you, 

Patrice Chiaramonte, Lifestyle Director.

Page 308



Field Operations Manager Report

Date Submitted: 8/20/25                       _______________    Submitted by: Jorge Rodriguez 

Completed Tasks

Pressure washing of all sidewalks, curbs, playgrounds, and pool deck was completed in the 
month of August , the week of the 24th

Entire exterior of the facility has received a deep cleaning including replacing of dead bulbs, 
removal and cleaning of light fixtures, and a De-webbing of all bugs and construction related 
dust and debris.
Both entry fountains have received a deep cleaning including a vacuuming and a flush.
Additional security cameras have been installed in (6) locations around the clubhouse and 
exterior to enhance surveillance and safety.

Weekly Projects
All garbage cans outside the clubhouse, within tennis and pickleball courts, and down Avenir 
Drive and Northlake Blvd are emptied and cleaned as needed.
All exterior light fixtures are inspected nightly, and Interior lights are inspected daily.
The 6 Clay Tennis Courts are raked and rolled thrice weekly. (Mon, Wed, Fri)
All 8 hard floor Tennis Courts and pickleball courts are blown daily to clean debris.
All Clubhouse grounds, including parking lots, sidewalks, pool deck, playgrounds, etc., are blown 
daily.
The playgrounds are being pressure washed monthly. All the equipment is thoroughly checked 
and tightened weekly. Inspections are completed daily upon opening.
All pools, splash pad, spa, and fountains are maintained daily to FL DoH standards.
All the outside recessed lighting covers have been removed and cleaned, removing all bugs and 
webs. 

Page 309



From: Ken akoundi
To: Jason Pierman
Subject: Safety-Focused Request to Open Tennis Courts at 7:00 a.m. (No Change to 10:00 p.m. Closing)
Date: Thursday, August 14, 2025 9:47:23 AM

“Move to adjust the Avenir CDD tennis courts’ opening time from 8:00 a.m. to
7:00 a.m., maintaining the 10:00 p.m. closing, for a 90-day pilot; direct staff to
update access-control schedules and signage and report back with usage,
feedback, and any operational impacts.”

Page 310



/ , 
 

AVENIR 
COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMENITIES RULES HANDBOOK 
Adopted January 27, 2022 

Revised August 20, 2025May 22, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Pierman  
District Manager  

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  

33410 
 (561) 630-4922 

www.Avenircdd.org 

Richard Salvatore 
General Manager  

Avenir CDD 
12255 Avenir Drive  

Palm Beach Gardens, FL 
33412 

(561)-284-6138 

Page 311



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PART 1: Amenities Operating Rules ........................................................................................... 1 
Definitions ................................................................................................................ 1 
Description of Amenities ......................................................................................... 3 
Amenities Usage ...................................................................................................... 3 
Community Programming ........................................................................................ 6 
General Provisions ................................................................................................... 9 
Alcohol Policy........................................................................................................ 12 
Fitness Center & Group Exercise Studio ............................................................... 13 
Locker Rooms ........................................................................................................ 15 
Pool & Lap Lanes .................................................................................................. 15 
Banquet Rooms & Related Gathering Areas ......................................................... 19 
Wireless Internet Access ........................................................................................ 20 
Tennis Courts ......................................................................................................... 22 
Playgrounds and Parks ........................................................................................... 23 
Pond Areas ............................................................................................................. 24 
Facility Rental Policies .......................................................................................... 25 
Property Damage .................................................................................................... 26 
Emergency Procedures ........................................................................................... 27 
Disciplinary Rule ................................................................................................... 28 
Use at Own Risk; Indemnification ......................................................................... 28 
Sovereign Immunity............................................................................................... 29 
Severability ............................................................................................................ 29 
Amendments / Waivers .......................................................................................... 29 
Other Rules and Policies ........................................................................................ 29 

                        PART 2: Disciplinary & Enforcement Rule ................................................................. 30 

PART 3: Amenity Forms ................................................................................................ 33 
New Patron Information Form 
Consent and Waiver Agreement 
Credit Application Form 
Rental/Reservation Forms 
Alcohol Requirements Matrix 

   Fee Schedule

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 312



1  

PART 1: Avenir Community Development District 
Amenities Operating Rules 

 
Law Implemented: ss. 190.011, 190.035, Fla. Stat. (2020) 

Effective Date: January 27, 2022 
 
 

In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on January 27, 
2022, at a duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Avenir 
Community Development District adopted the following policies to govern the 
operation of the District’s Amenities. All prior policies of the District governing this 
subject matter are hereby rescinded. 

 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

The following definitions shall apply to these Rules in their entirety: 
 

“Amenities” – shall mean the properties and areas owned by the District and 
intended for recreational use and shall include the following amenities, together with their 
appurtenant areas, facilities, equipment, and any other appurtenances: 

 
 Recreation Center 
 Banquet Rooms 
 Fitness Floor/Center 
 Lockers 
 Kids’ Room 
 Recreation Center Lap Pool 
 Recreation Center Beach Pool 
 Recreation Center Hot Tub 
 Recreation Center Splash Pad 
 Tennis Courts 
 Pickleball Courts 
 Playgrounds 

 
“Access Card” – shall mean the identification card, Fob, or other means of access/identification 
issued to Patrons by the district. 

 
“Amenities Rules” or “Rules” – shall mean this document together with the 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold, Italic
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 
Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered

Page 313



2 
 

District’s adopted fee/rate schedule, the Amenities Disciplinary Rule, and all related forms 
of the District, as amended from time to time. 

“Annual User Fee” – shall mean the base fee established by the District for the 
non-exclusive right to use the Amenities. The amount of the Annual User Fee is set forth 
in the District’s adopted fee/rate schedule. 

 
“Board of Supervisors” or “Board” – shall mean the Board of Supervisors of the 

District. 
 

“District” – shall mean the Avenir Community Development District. 
 

“District Manager” – shall mean the professional management company with 
which the District has contracted to provide district management services to the District. 

 
“Family” – shall mean a group of individuals living under one roof or as head of 

household. This can consist of individuals who have not yet attained the age of eighteen, 
together with their parents or legal guardians. This does not include visiting relatives, or 
extended family not residing in the home. 

 
“General Manager” – shall mean the management company, including its 

employees, staff, and agents, contracted by the District to manage the Amenities. 
 

“Guest” – shall mean any person or persons, other than a Patron, who are expressly 
authorized by the District to use the Amenities, or invited for a specific visit by a Patron to 
use the Amenities. 

 
“Non-Resident” – shall mean any person who does not own property within the 

District. 
 

“Non-Resident Patron” – shall mean any person or Family paying the Annual 
User Fee to the District, but not owning property in the District. who is paying the 
Annual User Fee to the District. 

 
“Patron” or “Patrons” – shall mean Residents, Non-Resident Patrons, and 

Renters. 
 

“Renter” – shall mean any tenant residing in a Resident’s home pursuant to a valid 
rental or lease agreement. 

 
“Resident” – shall mean any person or Family owning property within the District. 

Page 314



 

3  

DESCRIPTION OF AMENITIES 
 

The District is a local unit of special-purpose government, created pursuant to and 
existing under the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. The District operates and 
maintains various public improvements and community facilities, including the Amenities. 

 
The Board reserves the right to amend, modify, or delete, in part or in their entirety, 

these Rules when necessary, at a duly-noticed Board meeting, and will notify the Patrons 
of any changes through an update to the Rules on the District’s website. However, in 
order to  permanently change rates or fees beyond the increases specifically allowed for by 
the District’s adopted fee/rate schedule, the Board must hold a duly noticed public 
hearing on  said rates and fees. 

 
The Recreation Center is located at 12255 Avenir Rd., Palm Beach Gardens, FL 

The Recreation Center features outdoor patio seating, banquet rooms, a Kids' room, and a 
fitness floor, along with several District offices. 

 
The Recreation Center also features a beach pool, hot tub, competition pool, and 

splash pad. The deck contains lounge chairs and umbrellas for Patrons and Guests. The 
tennis courts are located behind the Recreation Center, which contains 6 clay courts, 2 
hard tennis courts, and 6 pickleball courts.  

 
AMENITIES USAGE 

 
Only Patrons and Guests have the right to use the Amenities, provided however that 

community programming (described later) may be available to the general public where 
permitted by the District, and subject to payment of any applicable fees and satisfaction of 
any other applicable requirements, including adherence to these Amenities Rules. 

 
Residents. A Resident must pay the Annual User Fee applicable to Residents in order to 
have the right to use the Amenities. Such payment must be made in accordance with the 
District’s annual assessment collection resolution and typically will be included on the 
Resident’s property tax bill. Payment of the Annual User Fee entitles the Resident to use 
the Amenities for one full fiscal year of the District, which year begins October 1 and ends 
September 30. Fees include the annual Operations and Maintenance (O&M) assessments 
(could vary from year to year) for upkeep and management of the Club improvements and 
the fixed annual Membership Assessments (to pay Principal and Interest on the Series 
2018-3 (Clubhouse Project) Bonds used to finance the Club acquisition and construction).  

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Page 315



 

5  

Non-Residents. A Non-Resident Patron must pay the Annual User Fee applicable 
to Non-Residents in order to have the right to use the Amenities for one full year, which 
year begins from the date of receipt of payment by the District. This fee must be paid in 
full before the Non-Resident may use the Amenities. Each subsequent Annual User Fee 
shall be paid in full on the anniversary date of the application. Annual User Fees may be 
renewed no more than 30 days in advance of the date of expiration and for no more than 
one calendar year. Multi-year memberships are not available. The Annual User Fee is 
nonrefundable and nontransferable. For the period of October 1, 2022 through September 
30, 2023, and each subsequent fiscal year, an Annual Non-Resident Membership may be 
purchased for such period. Refer to the District’s fee schedule for rates. 

 
Renter’s Privileges. Residents who rent or lease residential unit(s) in the District, 

in areas assessed for amenity usage, shall have the right to designate the Renter of the 
residential unit(s) as the beneficial users of the Resident’s privileges to use the Amenities 
upon written documentation. Residents may retain their Amenities rights in lieu of 
granting them to their Renters. Residents may not retain their rights to use the Amenities 
and grant them to Renters at the same time for the same residential property. 

 
1. A Renter who is designated by a Resident as the beneficial user of the 

Resident’s rights to use the Amenities shall be entitled to the same rights 
and privileges to use the Amenities as the Resident. A Renter will be 
required to provide proof of residency (i.e. a copy of the lease agreement, 
and complete a landlord-tenant agreement form) and pay any applicable fee 
before he or she receives an Access Card. Such Renter shall receive an 
Access Card which shall expire at the end of the lease term and may be 
reactivated upon provision of proof of residency. 

2. During the period when a Renter is designated as the beneficial user, the 
Resident shall not be entitled to use the Amenities. 

3. Residents shall be responsible for all charges, including any damages 
incurred by the district, incurred by their Renters which remain unpaid 
after the customary billing and collection procedure established by the 
District. Resident owners are responsible for the deportment of their 
respective Renter. 

4. Renters shall be subject to all Amenities Rules as the Board may adopt from 
time to time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 316



 

6  

 
Guests.  All Guests must be accompanied by a Patron. Avenir Patrons may be 

accompanied by up to 4 Guests per household, per day, for pool usage. Total Guest space for the 
pool area (excluding private parties that are pre-arranged in the pavilions) will be limited to 40 
per day and may vary on holidays or during special events, as determined by the General 
Manager.. Guest spaces for the pool area are available on a first-come, first-served basis. and can 
be reserved online through Avenir.nabrnetwork.com. Guest attendance can be reserved up to 14 
days in advance. 

 
All Patrons are required to show their issued Avenir ID, and their Guest will be required to 

sign in, upon entry into the Avenir Clubhouse before using the amenities. All Guests will receive 
a wristband at check-in. Please be aware that guest spaces are first-come, first-servedif you have 
not reserved a Guest space for each Guest through the Guest registration system, and if no Guest 
spaces remain for the day, your Guest will not be permitted to use the amenities. 

 
Unaccompanied Guests are not permitted to use the pool, gym, tennis courts, pickleball 

courts, playgrounds, or any other portion of the Aamenities at any time. 
 

The permitted number of Guests for rental event space is subject to that area’s capacity 
and is outlined in the rental policy. Separate reservation of Guest attendance, as outlined above, is 
not required for residents renting event space and their Guests. 

  
Children under the age of thirteen (13) must be accompanied by an adult who is eighteen 

(18) or older, at all times. Children who are not acting in compliance with the Handbookrules, or 
who are not accompanied or supervised by a responsible adult, may be removed from the 
Amenities, and this may result in a loss to theof Amenitiesy access. 

 
Additional Guest fees may apply for Guest participation in clubs, programs, or events that 

enable that level of participation on a limited and pre-approved basis. 
 

Restricted hours for Guest use of certain facilities and programs may change and are 
subject to Board-approved policies and operating procedures, implemented by the District 
Manager. 

 
As the Patron population grows and demand for facility use of the Amenities increases, the 

Board reserves the right to revise this policy as the population of the community grows and may 
amend the Handbook Rules pertaining to Guests as it sees fit to best accommodate the needs and 
interests of the community-at-large. This may include Gguest capacity, Gguest hours, and/or fees. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 317



 

7  

 
 
 
Registration / Disclaimer. In order to use the Amenities, each Patron and all 

members of a Patron’s Family shall register with the District at the clubhouse Recreation 
Center by executing a New Patron/Guest Information Form, and by executing the 
Consent and Waiver Agreement, copies of which are attached hereto. Additionally, each 
Patron is responsible for ensuring that each of the Patron’s Guests executes a Consent and 
Waiver Agreement prior to using the Amenities. All persons using the Amenities do so 
at their own risk and agree to abide by the Amenities Rules. As set forth more fully 
later herein, the District shall assume no responsibility and shall not be liable for 
any accidents, personal injury, or damage to, or loss of property arising from the 
use of the Amenities or from the acts, omissions or negligence of other persons using 
the Amenities. Patrons are responsible for their actions and those of their Guests. 
Furthermore, by using the public facilities, each Patron hereby grants permission to the 
District for the use of any and all photos in which Patrons, without limitation, may appear. 
The usage is inclusive of but not limited to the publication or inclusion in the District’s 
website, brochures, posters, catalogs, handbooks, banners, and broadcast or print 
advertisements by the District. Patrons and Guests also agree by using the facilities to waive 
any claim to compensation for use of said photos. 

 
 

 
 

Access Cards. All Patrons will be issued an Access Card at the management 
office, located at the main lobby of the ClubhouseRecreation Center. Access Cards will 
give Patrons entry to the District’s Amenities during the regular operating hours of the 
Amenities. 

 
Each Patron will receive an Access Card upon registration with the District. For 

Families, each Patron may obtain additional Access Cards for any member of a Patron’s 
Family who resides full-time within the listed Avenir address and is 13 years of age or 
older. Minors ages 13 to 17 may receive an Access Card with limited access, with a legal 
guardian’s consent. Minors under the age of 18 must  be accompanied by an adult, 18 and 
older, at all times. 

 
Patrons must use their Access Cards to gain access to the Amenities. Upon 

arrival, Patrons must provide their Access Cards to the clubhouse staff located in the 
main entry of the ClubhouseRecreation Center.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Page 318



 

8  

This Aaccess Card system prevents non-Patron entry. Unless otherwise stated herein, 
under no circumstances should a Patron provide their Access Card to a non-Patron to 
allow a non-Patron to enter into or use the Amenities. 

 
Access Cards are the property of the District and are non-transferable except in 

accordance with the District’s Amenities Rules. All lost or stolen cards need to be reported 
immediately to the District. Fees may apply to replace any lost or stolen cards. 

 
Commercial property owners within the District must contact the Recreation 

Director in order to obtain their Access Cards. 
 

Caregivers. The District allows caregivers to accompany minors or infirm Patrons 
using the Amenities, provided that the following requirements are met: 

 The caregiver, who is considered a Guest for purposes of the Amenities Rules, does 
not count toward the limitations on the number of Guests set forth above. 

 The caregiver must be eighteen (18) years of age or older and must accompany a 
Patron or a member of the Patron’s Family who is otherwise authorized to use the 
Amenities. 

 The Patron employing the caregiver must make a written request to authorize the 
caregiver to accompany the member of the Patron’s Family requiring care. 

 The Patron employing the caregiver is responsible for any violations, damage, etc. 
caused by the caregiver. 

 The caregiver must execute a Consent and Waiver Agreement. 
 The caregiver’s use of the Amenities will expire after one year but may be renewed 

annually by request of the Patron. 
  

Commercial Advertising Policy. The District is a unit of government established 
for the purposes of operating, owning, maintaining, and providing various capital 
facilities and services within the District. The District hereby adopts a no commercial 
advertisements policy. This policy provides that the District will not, through its e-blast 
system, website, on the recreational facilities walls or grounds, or through other District 
mediums, allow commercial advertisements of any kind, regardless of content. The only 
commercial advertisements permitted are those that are of official District events. A 
District event is an event that is held and organized on behalf of the District through the 
District’s employees or General Management companyManager and is officially 
sponsored, supported, and/or funded through the District, including vendor events 
facilitated by the District, such as markets or  food truck events. The District may at its 
discretion choose the method of promoting such event, including featuring individual 
vendors. The three exceptions to this policy are: (1) the District allows advertisements on 
its leaderboard at the swimming pool, through previously adopted leaderboard advertising 
guidelines and upon payment to the District for such advertisements; (2) advertisements 
may be placed solely on the designated community bulletin board in the District’s 
Rrecreation Ccenter, which bulletin board may be discontinued at any time, without 
notice, and which advertisements are removed from time to time by the General Manager 
to allow others an opportunity to post; and (3) if the District contracts with a third party 
for the publication of a community newsletter, such third party may permit advertising 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Page 319



 

9  

in the newsletter if authorized to do so by the Board. 

Page 320



 

10  

 
COMMUNITY PROGRAMMING 

The District is pleased to offer a wide variety of programs and activities designed 
to meet the needs of Patrons of all ages, interests and skill levels. District staff are 
constantly evaluating potential and current program offerings; accordingly, programs may 
be added or discontinued in the District’s sole discretion. The format of each program or 
activity will be structured to provide participants most effectively with a positive 
recreational experience of the highest caliber. 

 
Patrons can easily find information on new programs and events by reviewing the 

community newsletter or Amenity flyers, or by contacting the Lifestyle Director. Email 
blasts are also sent to registered users of the website with up-to-date information on 
activities. 

 
Patrons and Guests Only. Unless otherwise directed by the District, programs will 

be open to Patrons and their Guests only, subject to payment of any applicable fees. Patrons 
may register Guests for programs; however, in order to provide Patrons with priority 
registration, Guests will only be able to register for programs if space permits. 

 
Registration. Patrons will be able to register for all programs and activities in 

person at the clubhouse, or, in some cases, online registration may be available. Most 
programs will require advanced registration (typically, one week prior to the start of a 
class or event, unless otherwise noted) to allow the staff to plan effectively. To avoid the 
unnecessary cancellation of a program, register by the posted deadline. Late registrations 
may be accepted on a case-by-case basis. Due to the nature of some programs and the 
availability of space, late registration may not always be feasible. Some programs will 
have maximum registration limitations. In the event a program is full, a waiting list will 
be created. If there are cancellations in the program, the Patrons on the waiting list will be 
contacted. This waiting list will also be used to determine if an additional program  can be 
offered. 

 
Payment. A variety of complimentary and fee-based programs will be offered to 

Patrons. Fees for programs are occasionally required to offset the cost of instruction, 
supplies, equipment, overhead, and administrative expenses. Full payment must be made 
at the time of registration or by the registration deadline, to be determined by the 
Amenities Manager. Patrons may pay for programs utilizing a check or credit card. The 
District reserves the right to change its method of payment at any time. 

 
Programs and Activities. All programs and services, including personal training, 

group exercise, tennis lessons, instructional programs, competitive events, and other 
programs, must be conducted through the Lifestyle Director or as directed by the Board. 
A  schedule of activities for the Amenities will be available from the Lifestyle Director. 

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Page 321



 

11  

 
 
Athletic Teams. The District may from time to time authorize certain District-

sponsored athletic teams that may be eligible to use the Amenities for both practice and 
competitions. For such events, teams from outside the District may be invited to participate 
in competitions. The District’s Amenities Rules apply to all such teams, and all such 
members of any outside teams shall be required to execute a Consent and Waiver 
Agreement. After these competitions are complete, all team members and their families 
must leave unless they are signed in as a Guest of a Patron. Please contact the General 
Manager for further information. 

 
Cancellation by the District. Patrons will be notified if there is a need to change or 

cancel a program. If a program is canceled, Patrons will be issued a refund or credit on 
their account if applicable. 

 
Refunds. Program refunds and credits may be granted on a case-by-case basis. 

Refunds and credits after the program registration deadline or after a program begins may 
not be approved. 

 
 

Program Suggestions and Ideas. The staff is constantly striving to improve 
programs and services offered to the community. Patrons are encouraged to submit ideas 
and suggestions for upcoming programs by emailing the Lifestyle Director. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
All Patrons and Guests using the Amenities are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, 
courteous, and safe manner, in compliance with all Amenities Rules. 
 

 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Page 322



11

 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

All Patrons and Guests using the Amenities are expected to conduct themselves in 
a responsible, courteous, and safe manner, in compliance with all Amenities Rules. 

 
Hours of Operation. All hours of operation of the Amenities will be established 

and made available from the Clubhouse Manager and/or posted at the Amenities. The 
District may restrict access or close some or all of the Amenities due to inclement 
weather, for purposes of providing a community activity, for making improvements, for 
conducting maintenance, or for other purposes. Any programs or activities of the District 
may have priority over other users of the Amenities. 

 
General Usage Guidelines. Except as otherwise stated herein, the following 

guidelines govern the use of the Amenities generally. Specific rules for each Amenity are 
posted in each area and outlined under their section herein. 

 
1) Registration and Access Cards. Each Patron must show an Access Card 

in order to access the Amenities and must have his or her assigned Access 
Card available for inspection. Cards are only to be used by the Patron to 
whom they are issued. Patrons must have at all times in their possession 
their personalized Access Card to enter and use the Amenities and must 
present their Access Cards upon request by clubhouse staff. 

2) Guests. Guests must be accompanied by a Patron while using the Amenities 
and must sign in with the clubhouse staff upon entering the  Amenities. 

3) Minors. Minors under the age of 13 must be accompanied by an adult, age 
18 or older, at all times. 

4) Attire. With the exception of the pool and wet areas where bathing suits are 
permitted, Patrons and Guests must be properly attired with shirts, pants, 
and shoes to use the Amenities. Bathing suits and wet or bare feet are not 
allowed indoors, with the exception of the locker room. 

5) Food and Drink. Food and drink will be limited to designated areas only. 
No glass containers of any type are permitted at any of the Amenities. All 
persons using any of the Amenities must keep the area clean by properly 
disposing of trash or debris. Management has the option to prohibit Patrons 
from bringing in commercially prepared meals, fast food, and party 
platters for consumption at the Amenities. This does not include rentals. 
No person under age 21 may possess an alcoholic beverage of any kind. 
No hard coolers, no outside food, or glass containers are allowed in the 
pool, on the pool deck, or in the Clubhouse internal and external seating 
areas, except as specifically set forth herein.  

6) Drugs and Alcohol. Anyone who appears to be under the influence of 
drugs or inebriated past the legal limits will be asked to leave the 
Amenities. Illegal drug use is prohibited, and violators will be punished to 
the maximum extent allowed by law. 

7) No Smoking. Smoking, including vapor and electronic devices, is not 
permitted in any building, or enclosed or fenced area to the maximum extent 

Page 323



11

 

 

of the prohibitions set forth in the Florida Clean Indoor Air Act or other 

Page 324



 

14  

subsequent legislation. Additionally, to the extent not prohibited by law, 
smoking is discouraged in all other areas of the Amenities. All waste must 
be disposed of in the appropriate receptacles. No employee or contractor of 
the District shall smokeSmoking of any kind is prohibited in any building, 
or enclosed or fenced area of the Amenities. Any violation of this policy 
shall be reported to the General Manager. 

8) Pets. Pets are not permitted within District buildings or other controlled 
access amenity facilities with the exception of service dogs as set forth in 
the District’s adopted Service Animal Policy. On all District Amenities, 
dogs must be leashed. Patrons and guests are responsible for picking up 
after all pets as a courtesy to others and in accordance with the law. Patrons 
maintain sole responsibility for any and all animals of any kind on District 
property, including but not limited to property damage or damage to 
persons. 

9) Vehicles. Vehicles must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles should not 
be parked on grass lawns, or in any way that blocks the normal flow of 
traffic. During special events, alternative parking arrangements may be 
authorized, but only as directed by District staff. Off-road bikes/vehicles 
(including ATVs), and motorized scooters are prohibited on all property 
owned, maintained, and operated by the District or at any of the Amenities 
within the District unless they are owned by the District. Golf carts are 
permitted in certain areas of the Amenities if properly licensed for on-road 
usage and permitted under applicable State and local laws. 

10) Skateboards, Etc. Use of bicycles, skateboards, rollerblades, and other 
similar use is limited to designated outdoor areas only. 

11) Fireworks. Fireworks of any kind are not permitted anywhere on the 
Amenities or District property. 

12) Service Areas. Only District employees and staff are allowed in the service 
areas of the Amenities. 

13) Courtesy. Patrons and their Guests shall treat all staff members, agents of 
the District, and other Patrons and Guests with courtesy and respect. 

14) Profanity. Loud, profane, or abusive language is prohibited. 
15) Horseplay. Disorderly conduct and horseplay are prohibited. 
16) Excessive Noise. Excessive noise that will disturb other Patrons and Guests 

is not permitted. 
17) Equipment. All equipment and supplies provided for use of the Amenities must 

be returned in good condition after use. Patrons and guests are encouraged to let 
the staff know if an area of the Amenities, or a piece of equipment, is in need of 
cleaning or maintenance. 

18) Littering. Patrons and Gguests are responsible for cleaning up after 
themselves and helping to keep the Amenities clean at all times. 

19) Solicitation and Advertising. Commercial advertisements shall not be 
posted or circulated in the Amenities. Please see the Commercial 
Advertising Policy contained within these Rules. Petitions, posters or promotional 
material shall not be originated, solicited, circulated or posted within the 
Amenities unless such materials are a result of a sponsorship package approved 
by management. Please contact the General Manager if you have any questions. 

Page 325



 

15  

20) Political Campaigns. Except as permitted by the District as part of an 
approved civic event, no persons may campaign on behalf of political 
candidates, whether partisan or nonpartisan, or political issues within the 
District’s Amenities (defined for purposes of this section as within the 
physical buildings, tenathletic nis courts and pool decks of the District). 
Campaigning may not inhibit or disrupt the flow of traffic to the District’s 
Amenities or in parking areas. The District’s intent is to ensure Patrons are 
able to use the Amenities without interruption by activities normally 
associated with political campaigns and to ensure safety and order within 
the facilities. Unless otherwise waived by the Board, the following 
guidelines apply: 
(a) Political campaigns are afforded the same opportunity as other persons 

or groups to rent District meeting room space at published rates. 
(b) No political campaign signs, flyers, or related documents are to be 

posted in or on District-owned property, including District bulletin 
boards, and  if discovered, such postings will be removed immediately. 

(c) No political campaign signs, flyers, or related documents are to be 
disseminated while in the District’s Amenities, Except as part of an 
approved civic event.. 

(d) To allow for the efficient and timely conduct of District business during 
public Board meetings, no political messages, paraphernalia (including 
but not limited to shirts, buttons, signs, or the like), political public 
comments or otherwise are allowed in or during a public meeting of the 
Board of Supervisors in furtherance of the candidacy of any candidate 
for public office. 

(e) No person shall make, and no person shall solicit or knowingly accept 
any political contribution in a building owned by a governmental entity. 
For purposes of this subsection, “accept” means to receive a 
contribution by personal hand delivery from a contributor or the 
contributor’s agent. This subsection shall not apply when a government-
owned building or any portion thereof is rented for the specific purpose 
of holding a campaign fundraiser. 

21) Firearms. Firearms are not permitted in the Amenities unless the Patron is 
authorized to possess and carry a firearm under Florida law. Among other 
prohibitions, pursuant to Florida law, no firearms may be carried to or 
possessed at any meeting of the District’s Board of Supervisors. 

22) Trespassing / Loitering. There is no trespassing or loitering allowed at the 
Amenities. Any individual violating this policy may be reported to the local 
authorities. 

23) Compliance with Laws. All Patrons and Guests shall abide by and comply 
with any and all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances, as well as 
any  District rules and policies, while present at or utilizing the Amenities, 
and shall ensure that any minor for whom they are responsible also 
complies with the same. 

24) Surveillance. Various areas of all Amenities are under twenty-four (24) 
hour video surveillance. By using the Amenities, Patrons and Guests hereby 

Page 326



 

16  

acknowledge and consent to such twenty-four (24) hour video surveillance. 
25) Bounce Houses & Other Structures. Bounce houses and similar apparatus 

are not permitted on District property unless prior approval is received from 
the District in writing. 

26) Grills. Patrons and Guests may not use their own grills on District property. 
27) Cellular Phones. To prevent disturbance to others, the use of cellular 

telephones is limited while in the Recreation Center. Patrons and guests are 
asked to keep their ringer turned off or on vibrate while in the Recreation 
Center. 

28) Lost Property. The District is not responsible for lost or stolen items. Staff 
members are not permitted to hold valuables or bags for Patrons or 
Guests. All found items should be turned in to the Clubhouse Manager for 
storage in the lost and found. Items will be stored in the lost and found for 
one week before being discarded.. 

29) Community Programming by District Representatives Only. All programs 
and services, including personal training, group exercise, tennis lessons, 
and instructional programs, must be conducted by an approved District 
employee or contractor. 

30) Emergencies. In the event of an injury, property damage, or other 
emergencies, please contact the District immediately pursuant to the terms 
of this policy (see the provisions herein addressing the same). 

31) Closures. Although anyone using the District’s Amenities does so at his or 
her own risk as set forth herein, the District reserves the right to close its 
Amenities or restrict access to any District property immediately if deemed 
necessary in the District’s discretion, including but not limited to in instances 
of inclement weather or safety hazards. Everyone must leave the Amenities 
or District property immediately when instructed to do so by staff. 

32) Overnight Parking. There is no overnight or long-term parking permitted 
in or around the clubhouse’s parking lot. Parking is provided for Patrons 
and guests during the active usage, and normal business hours, of the 
Aamenities only.  

 
ALCOHOL POLICY 

Generally 
 
 

The following policy applies to the possession and consumption of alcoholic beverages on 
District property: 

1) Patrons and Guests must be at least 21 years of age to be served alcohol. 
Patrons and Guests under 21 years of age may not possess or consume 
alcohol on the property at any time. 

2) All Patrons and Guests must present valid picture identification at the 
request of the General Manager. 

3) Alcohol served on the premises must be consumed on the premises. 
4) The District reserves the right to refuse to serve alcohol to anyone. 
5) The District reserves the right to ask intoxicated or disruptive persons to 

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.42", First line:  0.5", Right: 
0.98", Space Before:  0 pt

Page 327



 

17  

leave the Amenities or District property immediately. 
6) No alcohol shall be consumed or served within any designated children’s 

area or playground. 
7) Subject to the rental policy, only alcoholic beverages served by a licensed 

Page 328



 

18  

and insured vendor are allowed at rental events at the Recreation Center. 
Outside alcohol is permitted at rental events at the Aquatics Complex 
provided that the terms of the rental policy and Rental Agreement are met. 

8) Any persons possessing, consuming, or providing alcohol on District 
property must comply with the Alcohol Requirements Matrix included in 
Part 3 of these Amenities Rules, as may be amended from time to time. 

9) Alcohol policies may be changed at any time at the discretion of the District. 
 

Recreation Center 
 

Patrons and Guests are not allowed to bring outside alcohol  to the Recreation 
Center at any time. Alcoholic beverages distributed during an event, by an approved 
vendor, may not be taken or consumed outside of the Recreation Center under any 
circumstances. Patrons who rent the Recreation Center are required to use bartenders 
employed by an approved vendor. Please see the Lifestyle Director for scheduling and 
rental fees. 

 
 

FITNESS CENTER & GROUP EXERCISE STUDIO 
 

Features and Benefits 

The District offers a fitness center with both cardiovascular and strength training 
equipment, including: 

 Cardiovascular machines 
 Circuit training 
 Free weights 
 Personal training 

 
The District also offers a group exercise studio featuring: 

 
 Mirrored walls 
 Organized fitness classes 

 
Usage Guidelines 

 
The following policies apply to the District’s fitness center and group exercise studio: 

 
1) Exercise at Your Own Risk. All Patrons and Guests are encouraged to 

consult their physician before beginning an exercise program and consult 
fitness staff for questions about equipment use. All Patrons and Guests 
shall consult District staff for any questions or concerns about the 
equipment. 

2) Usage Restrictions. Patrons and Guests ages 13 and older may use the 
fitness center, but they must have an Access Card and signed waiver on file. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 329



 

19  

Patrons and Guests ages 13 to 17 must be accompanied by an adult age 18 
or older. No children, infants, or toddlers are allowed in the fitness center 
or exercise studio at any time. 

3) Attire. Appropriate attire including shorts, shirts, and closed-toed athletic 
footwear must be worn at all times in the fitness center. 

4) Courtesy. If a Patron or Guest is waiting, cardiovascular equipment 
utilization is limited to 30 minutes. If a Patron or Guest is waiting for the 
weight equipment, individuals should allow others to “work in” between 
sets. All equipment must be wiped down after use with the wipes and/or 
spray provided. 

5) Food and Drink. No food or chewing gum is permitted in the fitness center. 
Water or other sports drinks must be contained in non-breakable, spill-
proof containers. 

6) Noise. Personal music devices are permitted if used with headphones and 
played at a volume that does not disturb others. Cell phone use while in 
the fitness center is not permitted. Personal speakers are not permitted. 

7) Equipment. Weights or other fitness equipment may not be removed from 
the fitness center. Please replace weights to their proper location after use. 
Free weights are not to be dropped and should be placed only on the floor 
or on equipment made specifically for storage of the weights. 

8) Hand Chalk. Hand chalk is not permitted. 
9) Personal Training. Except as expressly authorized by the District, the 

provision of personal training services for fees, or solicitation of personal 
training services for fees, is prohibited. The District offers a personal 
training program for Patrons seeking more individualized attention and 
guidance. Information on trainers, packages, and fees is available in the 
newsletter and posted in the facility. All instructors must be approved 
District employees or independent contractors. 

10) Maintenance Items. All concerns, equipment malfunctions, and 
maintenance needs should be reported to the staff. 

 
The following additional policies apply to the group exercise studio: 

1) Group Classes. Classes are scheduled each month based on the interests of 
the Patrons and the availability of qualified instructors. Information on class 
times, dates, fees, and instructors is available at the fitness desk. All 
instructors must be approved District employees or contractors. 

2) General Usage. Patrons and Gguests are permitted to use the studio and 
the equipment within the studio when classes are not in session, subject to 
availability. 

3) Music System. The music system may only be utilized as part of a structured 
and supervised program. 

4) Usage Restrictions. Patrons and Guests between the ages of 13 and 167 
may participate in group exercise classes when accompanied by a 
parent/guardian. Patrons and Guests 16 years and older may participate in a 
group exercise class independently, with a signed waiver on file. 

Page 330



 

20  

 

LOCKER ROOMS 
 

Features and Benefits 

Locker room facilities are available for all Patrons and Guests, including: 
 

 Individual use lockers 
 Showers 

 
Usage Guidelines 

 
1) Daily Use. Lockers are for daily use only, and all items must be removed 

from the lockers at the end of the day. 
a. If a locker is not vacated at the end of the day, items left in the 

locker will be removed by District staff. 
b. Items removed from lockers will be kept for one week at the 

Recreation Center’s lost and found. After one-week, unclaimed 
items will be donated or otherwise disposed of. 

c. The General Manager reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to 
remove and dispose of items immediately and without notice. 

2) Age Restriction. Children 5 years of age and older are required to use the 
shower/dressing area of their gender. 

3) Dressing Room. A family/accessible dressing room and bathroom is 
available in the Recreation building Center to anyone who may need 
assistance changing. 

 
 
 

POOL, SPLASH PAD, & LAP LANES 
 

Features & Benefits 
 

The District offers a variety of aquatic amenity areas, including: 
 

 Zero entry beach pool 
 Children’s Splash Pad 
 Junior Olympic size Lap pool with lane lines 
 Market-size umbrellas, loungers, tables, and chairs 

 
Usage Guidelines 
 

1) Operating Hours. Swimming Use of the pools and splash pad is permitted only 
during designated hours as posted ,       at the pool, and such hours are subject to 
change at the discretion of the District. No one is permitted in the pool at any 
other time unless a specific event is 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 331



 

21  

scheduled. 
2) Check-In. Patrons with Guests are required to check-in with clubhouse staff 

before utilizing the pools. Access to the pools is on a first-come, first-served 
basis, and the District reserves the right to refuse entry if the pools areis at 
capacity. 

3) Swim at Your Own Risk. All persons using the pool do so at their own risk 
and must abide by all swimming pool rules and policies. 

4) Supervision of Children. Minors under the age of 13 must be accompanied 
by, and supervised by, an adult at least 18 years of age at all times for usage 
of the pools. All children 5 years of age or younger, as well as all children 
who are unable to swim by themselves, must always be supervised by a 
responsible individual (18 years of age or older) within arm’s length when 
on the pool deck or in the pool. All children, regardless of age, using 
inflatable armbands (i.e., water wings) or any approved Coast Guard 

 
water and within arm’s length of the child. 

5) Small Children; Swim Diapers. Children 3 years and younger are restricted 
to the splash pad unless closely supervised by an adult who is 18 years of 
age or older. Parents should take their children to the restroom before 
entering the pool and are responsible for ensuring that their children  do not 
urinate or defecate in the pool. Swim diapers are required. Children who 
are not reliably toilet trained must wear rubber-lined swim diapers and a 
swimsuit over the swim diaper. Diapers (cloth and disposable) are 
prohibited. If contamination occurs, the pool will be closed and the water 
will be shocked with chlorine to kill the bacteria. Any individual 
responsible for contamination of the pool may be held responsible for any 
clean-up or decontamination expenses incurred by the District. 

6) Food and Drink. Patrons will be permitted to bring their own snacks and 
nonalcoholic beverages to the pool; however, no hard coolers are 
permitted except for small snack coolers, which are defined as those 
coolers that hold  twelve quarts or less. Additionally, no food or beverages 
are permitted in the pools,  or on the pool wet deck area, or at the splash 
pad. Instead, food and beverages are only allowed in designated areas.  

7) Glass Containers. Glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are not 
permitted anywhere in the pool area, splash pad, playground, or locker 
rooms. 

8) Aquatic Toys and Recreational Equipment. No flotation devices are 
allowed in the pool except for water wings and swim rings used by small 
children, under the direct supervision of an adult. Inflatable rafts, balls, pool 
floats, and other toys, balls, and equipment are prohibited. 

9) Skateboards, Etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or 
skateboards are permitted on the pool deck. A bike rack is provided near 
the pool gate in the parking lot area. 

10) Prevention of Disease. All swimmers must shower before initially entering 
the pool. Persons with open cuts, wounds, sores, or blisters, or nasal or ear 
discharge, may not use the pools or splash pad. No person should use 

Page 332



 

22  

the pools or splash pad with or 

Page 333



 

23  

suspected of having a communicable disease or illness which could be 
transmitted through the use of the pool. 

11) Attire. Appropriate swimming attire (swimsuits) must be worn at all times. 
No thongs or Brazilian bikinis are allowed. Wearing prohibited attire will 
result in immediate expulsion. 

12) Pets. Pets (other than service animals) are not permitted on the pool deck 
area inside the pool gates at any time. 

13) Horseplay. No jumping, pushing, running, wrestling, excessive splashing, 
sitting or standing on shoulders, spitting water, or other horseplay is 
allowed  in the pools or on the pool deck area or at the splash pad. 

14) Diving. Diving is strictly prohibited at the pool. Back dives, back flips, 
back jumps, or other dangerous actions are prohibited. 

15) Weather. The pool and pool area, including the splash pad, will be closed 
during electrical storms or when rain makes it difficult to see any part of 
the pool or pool bottom clearly. The pool will be closed at the first sound 
of thunder or sighting of lightning within 10 6 miles and will remain 
closed for thirty minutes after the last sighting. Everyone must leave the 
pool deck immediately upon hearing thunder or sighting lightning, or 
when instructed to do so by the staff. 

16) Reservation of Tables or Chairs. Tables or chairs on the deck area may not 
be reserved by placing towels or personal belongings on them. 

17) Noise. Personal speakers are not permitted anywhere on the pool deck, in 
the pool, etc. 

18) Entrances. Pool entrances must always be kept clear. No golf cart, bicycle 
18)  parking is permitted in front of any pool gates, or on walkways. 

19) Railings. No swinging on ladders, fences, safety lines, or railings is 
allowed. 

20) Pool Furniture. Pool furniture is not to be removed from the pool area, or 
20)   placed in the pools. 
21) Chemicals. Chemicals used in the pool may affect certain hair or fabric 

colors. The District is not responsible for these effects. 
22) Pollution. No one shall pollute the pool. Anyone who does pollute the pool 

is liable for any costs incurred in treating and reopening the pool. 
23) Swim Instruction. Except as expressly authorized by the District, swim 

instruction is only permitted through a District-approved swim instructor.. 
24) Rest Rooms / Locker Rooms. Please use the restrooms adjacent to the pool. 

Children, ages five and older, MUST use their gender appropriate changing 
room. 

25) Staff Only. Only authorized staff members are allowed in the filter rooms, 
chemical storage rooms, and mechanical yard. 

26) Pool Closure. In addition to Palm Beach County and the State of Florida 
Health Code Standards, and as noted above, the pools and splash pad will 
be closed for the following reasons: 

 Operational and mechanical difficulties affecting pool water quality. 
 During severe weather conditions (heavy rain, lightning, and  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.97",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  1.73",  No bullets or
numbering

Page 334



 

24  

thunder) and warnings, especially when visibility to the pool bottom 
is compromised (deck also closed). 

 For 30 minutes following the last occurrence of thunder or lightning 
(deck also closed). 

 For at least 4 hours following any mishap that results in feces 
or vomit in the pool water. 

 Any other reason deemed to be in the best interests of the District as 
determined by District staff. 

 
Additional Usage Guidelines (Lap Lane) 

 
1. Lap lanes are to be used only by persons swimming laps or water walking. 
2. Lap lane swimmers are encouraged to share the lane and circle swim. 
3. The District reserves the right to remove some lap lanes on weekends. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BANQUET ROOMS 
AND RELATED GATHERING AREAS 

 
The facility contains common social areas that will be programmed at specific 

times of the day and will also be open for Patron use. 
 

Features and Benefits - Banquet Rooms are available for use and rental and are 
located within the Recreation Center. There is wireless internet access. These 
rooms convert to two separate rooms. 

 
Usage Guidelines 

 
1. Availability. All areas, except the Event Hall, are open for Patron 

utilization unless a structured program, event, or exclusive rental is 
taking place. 

2. Rental of Banquet Room(s). The Banquet Room(s) are available for 
rental (see the section herein on rentals). 

3. Age Restriction. Minors under the age of 13 must be accompanied by an 
adult, age 18 or older. Patrons are not permitted to “drop off” their 
children/grandchildren without specific supervision from an adult. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 335



 

25  

 
 

KIDS’ ROOM 

Usage 
 

Kids’ Corner is for the use of Patrons and Guests only, for children 3 months old to 12 
years old. Parents or legal guardians must supervise their child at all times, while child is 
in the kids’ corner. 

 
Availability 

 

Kids’ Corner is not a babysitting or daycare, and is first come first serve. Parents or legal guardians 
must supervise children at all times while utilizing the kids’ corner. 

 
Sick Child 

 

        Children deemed ill or sick by staff will not be allowed to utilize the space. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WIRELESS INTERNET ACCESS 
 

Features and Benefits 
 

The Recreation Center and associated decks, amenity spaces and related areas, 
feature wireless internet access that Patrons and Guests may use free of charge, subject to 
the usage guidelines below. 

 
Usage Guidelines 

 
1) The District assumes no responsibility for any damages, direct or indirect, 

that may occur from the use of its electronic resources. Further, the District 
assumes no responsibility for accuracy, authority, objectivity, currency, or 
content of any Internet resource. Computer users peruse the Internet at their 
own risk, realizing the potential for accessing offensive, inaccurate or 
illegal information. 

2) Use of the District’s wireless internet access for purposes contrary to state 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 336



 

26  

or federal laws or in a manner that violates this policy will not be allowed and may 
result in the loss of privileges. Such violations may include, but are not limited to: 

a. Intentionally displaying, sending, or receiving inappropriate 
materials in either text or graphic format that may be reasonably 
construed as obscene, child pornography, or harmful to minors. 

b. Propagating malicious software. 
c. Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material. 
d. Attempting to access unauthorized files or systems. 

3) Parents/legal guardians are responsible for deciding which Internet 
resources are appropriate for their own children under age 18. Restriction 
of a child’s access to the Internet is the responsibility of the parent/legal 
guardian. 

 

TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL COURTS 
 

A total of Eight (8) tennis courts and six (6) pickleball courts are available for 
informal use, lessons, and league play. 

 
Features and Benefits 

 
 6 Pickleball courts 
 2 Hard Top Tennis Courts 
 6 Hard-Tru Tennis Courts 
 Shaded Pavilions  
 Tennis professional available by appointment 

 
Usage Guidelines 

1) Reservations & Scheduling. 
a. Tennis Ccourts may be reserved on a 2-hour basis in person, 

online, or by phone up to 3 days in advance, through the clubhouse 
manager. The reservations sheet will be with management, and 
patrons wishing to “walk-on” to an unreserved court will be able to 
do so pending availability. 

b. Court reservations will be honored and enforced over unscheduled 
play except for players who arrive more than fifteen minutes late 
for their reservation. 

c. Please check in ten minutes prior to play. Several courts may be 
unavailable due to cleaning, maintenance, or reservations. 

d. There will be, from time to time, a designated teaching court that 
will not be available for reservation. When it is not being used for 
instruction, it will be available on a first-come, first-served basis. 

e. A schedule of activities will be posted in each area and updated by 
the staff. 

f. When other players are waiting tennis court use should be limited to 
1 hour. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic

Page 337



 

27  

2) Supervision of Children. Minors under the age of 13 must be accompanied 
by an adult (18 years and older). Patrons are not permitted to “drop off” 
underage children without specific supervision from an adult. 

3) Attire. All players shall be dressed in appropriate attire, which includes 
shirts, tennis shoes, shorts, or warm-up suits. These items must be worn at 
all times. Hard and/or black soled shoes are restricted from the tennis courts. 

4) Usage Rules. Tennis courts are for tennis only. The rules established by 
the United States Tennis Association (U.S.T.A.) will always be strictly 
followed and adhered to by all players. Pickleball courts are for Pickleball 
use only. 

5) Pets. Pets, with the exception of service animals, as defined by Florida 
law, are not permitted on the tennis courts at any time. 

6) Food and Drinks. Food and gum are not permitted on the courts. Drinks 
must be in a non-breakable, spill-proof container. 

7) Glass Containers. No glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are 
permitted on the tennis courts. 

8) Operating Hours. The tennis courts are open from 8 am to 10 pm, Monday 
through Sunday. No one is permitted on the tennis courts at any other time 
unless a specific event is scheduled. 

9) Court Lights. Please allow up to five (5) minutes for the lights to fully 
illuminate. After play, please turn off the lights prior to leaving the court 
area. 

10) Skateboards, etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or 
skateboards, or similar uses are permitted on the tennis courts. 

11) Furniture. No furniture, other than benches already provided, will be 
allowed on the playing surfaces. 

12) Equipment. Patrons are responsible for bringing their own equipment. 
13) Tennis Instruction. Except as expressly authorized by the District and by 

a District-approved vendor, tennis or pickleball instruction for fees, or 
solicitation of tennis instruction for fees, is prohibited. 

14) Equipment. Fees, as adopted by the Board of Supervisors and contained in 
the fee chart, will be assessed for courts. 

 

PLAYGROUNDS AND PARKS 
 

Our community provides playground areas and parks for Patrons to enjoy. 
 

Usage Guidelines: 
 

1) Use at Your Own Risk. Patrons and Guests may use the playgrounds and 
parks at their own risk and must comply with all posted signage. 

2) Hours of Operation. Unless otherwise posted, all playground and park 
hours are from dawn to dusk. 

3) Supervision of Children. Adult supervision (18 years or older) is required 
for children under the age of 13. Children must remain in the sight of 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 338



 

28  

parents/guardians. All children are expected to play cooperatively with 
other children. 

4) Shoes. Proper footwear is required. No open-toed Shoes. No Barefoot 
5) Mulch. The mulch material is necessary for reducing fall impact and for 

good drainage. It is not to be picked up, thrown, or kicked for any reason. 
6) Food & Drink. No food, drinks, or gum are permitted on the playground, 

but are permitted at the parks. Patrons and Guests are responsible for the 
clean-up of any food or drinks brought by them to the parks. 

7) Pets. No pets of any kind are permitted except for service animals. 
8) Glass Containers. No glass containers are permitted. 
9) Equipment. No outside equipment is permitted.  
10) No Jumping. No jumping off from any climbing bar or platform. 
11) Playground Slides. Climb the ladder and go down the slide one at a time; 

go down in a sitting position, feet forward; wait until the person before you 
finishes sliding first; slide inside the tunnel slide, do not climb on top; no 
clogging the tunnel slide; and no running or climbing up the slides. 

 

POND AREAS 
 

The District operates and maintains a small number of stormwater ponds 
throughout the community, some of which are on the Recreation Center property. The 
District’s stormwater ponds are not designed for swimming or boating. 

 
The following additional guidelines apply: 

 
1) Privacy. Please be respectful of the privacy of the residents living near the 

ponds. 
2) Parking. Parking along the right-of-way or on any grassed area near the 

ponds is prohibited. 
3) Litter. Do not leave any litter. 
4) Wildlife. Do not feed the wildlife anything, ever. 
5) No Swimming. Swimming is prohibited in all ponds on District property. 
6) No Fishing. Fishing is prohibited in all ponds on District property. 
7) No Boating. No watercraft of any kind is allowed in any of the ponds on 

District property. 
8) Stormwater Management System. The ponds owned by the District are part 

of the District’s stormwater management system. Consistent with the 
District’s existing “Natural Areas Policy,” maintenance of the system, 
disposal of personal property within the system, and other similar activities 
are strictly prohibited, except by authorized representatives of the District. 
Please contact the District’s General Manager in the event that you witness 
any event in violation of these policies or requiring the District’s attention. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Page 339



 

29  

FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 

For the convenience and enjoyment of our Patrons, our community offers certain 
facilities for private rentals, including the Banquet Rooms, Pavilion, Pool Deck, and other 
areas. 

 
The following policies apply to the rental of the Amenities: 
1) Rentals; Patrons Only. Patrons must reserve Amenities available for rental through 

the Lifestyle Director in order to use those areas on an exclusive basis and must 
reserve the facility or facilities for any organized party or event in order to use 
those areas on a non-exclusive basis. Unless otherwise directed by the District, 
only Patrons may reserve the Amenities for parties and events. All rentals are 
subject to availability and the discretion of the General Manager and/or board of 
directors. 

 
2) Amenities Available for Rental: The following Amenities are available for rental: 

a. Recreation Center Club Room 
b. Recreation Center Event Hall 
c. East & West Pool Pavilions  
d. Café Pavilion 

 
3) Payment & Registration. Patrons interested in renting the Amenities may pick up 

the application packet at the Recreation Center. At the time the reservation is made, 
two checks, money orders, or credit card authorizations (no cash), one for the 
deposit and one for the rental fee in full, both made out to District must be delivered 
to the General Manager, along with completed paperwork and insurance certificate. 
Each Patron renting the Amenities must sign and execute a Rental Agreement 
acceptable to the District. Regardless of whether the Rental Agreement is executed, 
the Patron is bound by the Rental Agreement, which is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

4) Rates and Deposits. The rental rates and deposits for use of the Amenities are as 
set forth in the District’s fees/rates. The deposit will secure the rental time, 
location, and date. To receive the full refund of the deposit within 10 days after the 
party, the renter must: 

i. Remove all garbage, place it in the dumpster, and replace garbage liners. 
ii. Take down all decorations or event displays; and 

iii. Otherwise clean the rented Amenities and restore them to their pre-
rented condition, and to the satisfaction of the District. 

The District may retain all or part of any deposit if the District determines, in its 
sole discretion, that it is necessary to repair any damages (including any clean-up 
costs) arising from the rental. 

5) Food & Drinks. The Patron may bring in his or her own food and non-alcoholic 
beverages. If the Patron desires to have alcohol available at a Recreation Center 
event, the Patron  must notify the General Manager in advance and must meet 
insurance and event 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Page 340



 

30  

staffing/security requirements as determined by the District in its sole discretion. If 
alcohol is to be served or sold, the Patron must hire a licensed bartender or caterer. 
Please see the Alcohol Requirements Matrix attached as a portion of Part 3 for more 
information. 

6) Computation of Rental Time. The rental time period is inclusive of set-up and 
clean-up time. 

7) Duration of Events. Unless otherwise authorized by the General Manager, each 
rental shall take place during normal operating hours. No after-hours events shall 
extend past midnight in any case, including cleanup. 

8) Capacity. The capacity limit shall not be exceeded at any time for a party or event. 
9) Noise. The volume of live or recorded music must not violate applicable County 

noise ordinances or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their 
homes. 

10) Insurance. Additional liability insurance coverage may be required for all events 
that are approved to serve alcoholic beverages, or for other events that the District 
determines in its sole discretion should require additional liability insurance. The 
District is to be named on these policies as an additional insured party. 

11) Staffing. Depending on the nature of the event, the District may, in its sole 
discretion, require the Patron renting the District’s facilities to pay for additional 
event attendant staffing, lifeguard staffing, or outside security services. 

12) Cancellation. Please see the latest rental agreement document available at the 
District’s Resident Relations desk for cancellation policies and cleaning/security 
deposit fees. 

 
PROPERTY DAMAGE 

 
Each Patron shall be liable for any property damage at the Amenities caused by 

him or her, his or her Guests, or members of his or her Family. The District reserves the 
right to pursue any and all legal and equitable measures necessary to remedy any losses 
due to property damage. 

 
Each Patron and Guest, as a condition of invitation to the premises of the 

Amenities, assumes sole responsibility for his or her property. The District shall not be 
responsible for the loss or damage to any private property used or stored on the premises 
of the Amenities, whether in lockers or elsewhere. 

 
EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 

 
In the event of an emergency, please dial 911 and contact the on-site Manager 

and/or the District Manager. The facility is equipped with a first aid kit and an AED. At all 
times while the facility is staffed, an individual with first aid, CPR, and AED 
certifications will be on duty to respond to emergencies, accidents, and injuries. The 
following equipment is available in the specified areas throughout the clubhouse. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Page 341



 

31  

First Aid Kits 
Locations 

 In the possession of management 
Procedure for Use 

1) Notify a staff member that first aid is required 
2) If a staff member is unavailable, utilize the first aid supplies as 

necessary 
3) Dispose of any used first aid supplies in appropriate trash 

receptacles 
AEDs 

 

Locations 
 Fitness Floor 

 
Procedure for Use 

1. Send someone to call 911 and contact the nearest staff member or 
General Manager 

2. Follow CPR steps with the victim 
3. If the victim is not breathing and you do not hear a heartbeat, 

open the AED 
4. Follow instructions provided by the AED 

 
 

DISCIPLINARY RULE 
 

Please be aware that staff must protect the rights and privileges of rule-abiding 
Patrons, and that inappropriate behavior will not be accepted. All Patrons and Guests are 
responsible for compliance with the Amenities Rules established for the safe operations of 
the Amenities. A copy of the District’s Amenities Disciplinary Rule is included as Part 2 
of this Amenities Rules Handbook. 

 
 

USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Any Patron, Guest, or other person who participates in the Activities (as defined 
below), shall do so at his or her own risk, and shall indemnify, defend, release, hold 
harmless, and forever discharge the District and its contractors, and the present, 
former, and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, representatives, agents, and 
contractors of each (together, “Indemnitees”), for any and all liability, claims, 
lawsuits, actions, suits or demands, whether known or unknown, in law or equity, by 
any individual of any age, or any corporation or other entity, for any and all loss, 
injury, damage, theft, real or personal property damage, expenses (including 
attorney’s fees, costs and other expenses for investigation and defense and in 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Page 342



 

32  

connection with, among other proceedings, alternative dispute resolution, trial court, 
and appellate proceedings), and harm of any kind or nature arising out of, or in 
connection with, the participation in the Activities, by said Patron, Guest, or other 
person, and any of his or her Guests and any members of his or her Family. 

Should any Patron, Guest, or other person bring suit against the Indemnitees 
in connection with the Activities or relating in any way to the Amenities, and fail to 
obtain judgment therein against the Indemnitees, said Patron, Guest, or other person 
shall be liable to the District for all attorney’s fees, costs, and other expenses for 
investigation and defense and in connection with, among other proceedings, 
alternative dispute resolution, trial court, and appellate proceedings. 

The waiver of liability contained herein does not apply to any act of 
intentional, willful, or wanton misconduct by the Indemnitees. 

For purposes of this section, the term “Activities” shall mean the use of or 
acceptance of the use of the Amenities, or engagement in any contest, game, function, 
exercise, competition, sport, event, or other activity operated, organized, arranged or 
sponsored by the District, its contractors or third parties authorized by the District. 

 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

 
Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s 

limitations on liability contained in Section 768.28, F.S., or other statutes or law. 
 

SEVERABILITY 
 

The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of these policies 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions or any part of the 
policies not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

AMENDMENTS / WAIVERS 
 

The Board in its sole discretion may amend these Amenities Rules from time to 
time. The Board by vote at a public meeting, or the District Manager, and/or General 
Manager, may elect in its/their sole discretion at any time to grant waivers to any of the 
provisions of these Amenities Rules, provided however that the Board is informed within 
a reasonable time of any such waivers. 

 
OTHER RULES AND POLICIES 

The District also has adopted other rules and policies governing the use of District 
property, including the Amenities. Please contact the District Manager for copies of all 
such rules and policies. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.49", First line: 

Page 343



 

33  

PART 2: Avenir Community Development District 
Disciplinary & Enforcement Rule 

 
Law Implemented: ss. 120.69, 190.011, 190.012, Fla. Stat. (2020) 

Effective Date: January 27, 2022 
 

In accordance with Chapters 190 and 120 of the Florida Statutes, and on January 27, 
2022, at a duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Avenir Community 
Development District adopted the following rules/policies to govern disciplinary and 
enforcement matters. All prior rules/policies of the District governing this subject matter are 
hereby rescinded. 

 
 

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES 
 

1. Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters 
relating to the use of the amenities and other properties owned and managed by the District 
(“Amenities” or “Amenity”). 

 
2. General Rule. All persons using the Amenities and entering District properties 

are responsible for compliance with, and shall comply with, the Amenities Rules 
established for the safe operations of the District’s Amenities. 

 
3. Suspension of Rights. The District, through its Board, District Manager, and 

General Manager, shall have the right to restrict, suspend, or terminate the Amenity 
privileges of any person to use the Amenities for any of the following behavior: 

 
a. Submits false information on any application for use of the Amenities; 
b. Permits the unauthorized use of an Access Card; 
c. Exhibits unsatisfactory behavior, deportment, or appearance; 
d. Fails to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely 

manner; 
e. Fails to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Amenity Rules); 
f. Fails to abide by any District Rental rules or policies; 
g. Treats the District’s supervisors, staff, general/amenity management, 

contractors, or other representatives, or other residents or guests, in an 
unreasonable or abusive manner; 

h. Damages or destroys District property; 
i. Engages in conduct that is improper or likely to endanger the health, 

safety, or welfare of the District, or its supervisors, staff, amenities 
management, contractors, or other representatives, or other residents or 
Guests; or 

j. Commits or is alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on or 
off District property that leads the District to reasonably believe 
Endangers District residents, staff, and Guests. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold, Italic
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.48", First line: 

Page 344



28 

 

 

 
4. Authority of District Manager and General Manager. The District Manager, General 

Manager or their designee has the ability to remove any person from one or all Amenities 
if any of the above-referenced behaviors are exhibited or actions committed or if in his/her 
discretion it is the District’s best interests to do so. The District Manager, General Manager 
or their designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, including but not 
limited to those described above, any person’s privileges to use any or all of the Amenities 
until the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 

 
5. Process for Termination or Suspension of Amenity Privileges. 

 
a. Offenses: 

i. First Offense: Verbal warning by Amenity staff and 
suspension of all Amenity privileges for up to one week from 
the commencement of the suspension. Violation is recorded by 
Amenity staff, signed by the individual offender(s), and held 
on file at the Amenity. 

i. Second Offense: Automatic suspension of all Amenity 
privileges for up to thirty days from the commencement of 
the suspension, with the preparation by Amenity staff of a 
written report to be signed by the offender(s) and filed at the 
Amenity. 

i. Third Offense: Suspension of all Amenity privileges for up to 
one year. Such suspension shall run to the next regular meeting 
of the Board of Supervisors. At said meeting, the record of all 
previous offenses will be presented to the Board for the 
recommendation of termination of the offender(s) privileges 
for one calendar year. The length of the suspension is at the 
discretion of the Board and may be for more or less than one 
year, depending on the nature of the violation. 

 
b. Each offense shall expire one year after such offense was committed, 

except in cases of egregious behavior that, in the discretion of the Board, 
may warrant a longer or even permanent suspension. After the 
expiration of one year, or longer as provided for herein, the number of 
offenses on record for such offender(s) shall be reduced by one. For 
example, if a first offense is committed on February 1 and a second 
offense on August 1, there will be two offenses on record until February 
1 of the following year, at which time the first offense will expire, and 
the second offense will thereafter be considered a first offense until it 
expires on the following August 1. The provisions of this Paragraph 
shall not at any time serve to reduce any suspensions or terminations, 
which may have been imposed prior to the expiration of any offenses. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any time a user of the Amenity is 
arrested for an act committed, or allegedly committed, while on the 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 345



29 

 

 

premises of the Amenity, or violates these Policies in a manner that, in 
the discretion of the District Manager or General Manager upon 
consultation with one Board member, justifies suspension beyond the 
guidelines set forth above, such offender(s) shall have all amenity 
privileges immediately suspended until the next Board of Supervisors 
meeting. At the Board meeting, the Board will be presented with the 
facts surrounding the arrest or violation and the Board may make a 
recommendation of suspension or termination of the offender(s) 
privileges, which suspension or termination may include members of 
the offender(s) household and may, upon the first offense, equal to or 
exceed one year. In particular situations that pose a long-term or 
continuing threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the District and 
its residents and users, permanent termination of Amenity privileges 
may be considered and warranted. 

 
c. Any suspension or termination of Amenity privileges may be appealed 

to the Board of Supervisors for reversal or reduction. The Board’s 
decision on appeal shall be final. 

 
6. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution. If any person is found to have 

committed any of the infractions noted in Section 3 above, such person may additionally 
be subject to arrest for trespassing or other applicable legal action, civil or criminal in 
nature. 

7. Fines. In the event of an infraction involving the commission of a crime on 
District property, resulting in law enforcement response to District property, or involving 
damage to or destruction of District property, the District may in its discretion assess a fine 
of up to $500 in order to offset the legal and administrative expenses incurred by the 
District. Such fine shall be in addition to any suspension or termination of amenity 
privileges and/or any applicable legal action warranted by the circumstances. 

 
8. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this rule 

shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall 
continue in full force and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the 
remainder of this rule would have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of 
such section. 

Page 346



30

 

 

PART 3: Avenir Community Development District 
Amenity Forms 

 
 

ATTACHED FORMS: 
 New Patron Information Form 
 Consent and Waiver Agreement 
 Credit Application Form 
 Rental/Reservation Forms 
 Alcohol Requirements Matrix 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 347



 

 

Avenir Community Development District  
Resident User Information Form 

 

 

  PRIMARY PATRON INFORMATION (family members to be added to reverse side)  
 

Last Name     First Name      
Address     

Street Address Apartment/Unit # 
 

  TENANT INFORMATION (IF APPLICABLE)*  
 

Begin Lease Date    End Lease Date     

Owner Last Name      Owner First Name       

Owner Address      
Street Address 
*Tenant shall provide a copy of their release and Owner shall submit a Tenant release form 

Apartment/Unit # 

 
  EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION INFORMATION  

 
 
 

   

   
 
 

Please select all that apply: 

 I would like to receive e-mails on District programs and events. (Do not check this option if 
you want the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 

 I would like to receive text messages on District programs and events. (Do not check this 
option if you want the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 

 Only contact me in case of emergency. 
 

 

  SPECIAL NEEDS  

Does anyone in your family have special needs you would like us to be aware of?  YES  NO  

NOTE TO STAFF: This form may contain confidential information. Please do not disclose its contents 
without first consulting the District Manager. 

PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information 
you submit on this form may become part of a public record. This means that, if a citizen makes a public 
records request, we may be required to disclose the information you submit to us. Under certain 
circumstances, we may only be required to disclose part of the information submitted to us. If you believe 
that your records may qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the 
District Manager and complete the Address/Identification Confidentiality Request from Public Records 
Disclosure Form. 

PRIVACY NOTICE: If you indicate that we should only use the Optional/Emergency Notification 
Information in case of emergency, then, pursuant to Section 119.071, Florida Statutes the 
Optional/Emergency Notification Information (which consists of the information in this section) may 
be exempt from disclosures we make as the result of a public records request. 

Home Phone 
Number    

 

Cell Phone Number      Name 

Cell Phone Number      Name 
Email Address(es)     

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: First line:  0"

Page 348



 

 

Avenir Community Development District 
Resident User         Information Form 

  HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS (Must Reside in Same House)  
 

Name (Last, First) Cell Phone Email Address     Avenir ID      
# 

1.    

2.    

Name(s) of Children Age Birthdate  

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

**In the event that one of the cards is lost, we will be responsible in paying $15.00 for each replacement card. 
 

 

PLEASE READ AND SIGN BELOW: 
Please initial 

The undersigned ("Patron") affirms that the above information is true and correct. Patron acknowledges that Resident Cards and Guest Passes 
are the property of the Avenir Community Development District (“AVENIR CDD” or “District”) and are non-transferable, in accordance with 
the District’s adopted rules, policies, and regulations. 
In consideration for being granted access to use District property and facilities—including, but not limited to, the Recreation Center and all 
associated amenities (collectively, the “Facilities”)—the undersigned, on behalf of him/herself, minor children, guests, heirs, executors, and 
assigns, voluntarily agrees to the following: 

1. Waiver of Liability: 
Patron hereby waives, releases, and discharges the District, its officers, supervisors, employees, contractors, agents, and 
representatives (“Released Parties”) from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, losses, or liabilities of any kind or 
nature, including but not limited to personal injury, illness, death, or property damage, arising out of or connected in any way with the 
use of the Facilities—whether by Patron, their guests, or minor children—except in cases of gross negligence or intentional 
misconduct by the District. 

2. Assumption of Risk: 
Patron understands and expressly assumes all risks associated with the use of the Facilities and participation in any District-sponsored 
or self-directed activities. These risks include, but are not limited to, injuries resulting from physical activity, recreational use 
(including swimming, tennis, pickleball, playground use, and fitness facilities), slips, falls, exposure to weather or environmental 
conditions, or the actions or negligence of other patrons or guests. 

3. Medical Acknowledgment: 
Patron acknowledges that the District does not provide medical or health evaluations and assumes no responsibility for individual 
physical conditions or limitations. All persons entering or using the Facilities do so at their own risk. 

4. Personal Property Disclaimer: 
The District shall not be liable for any lost, stolen, or damaged personal property while on District premises. 

5. Guest Responsibility: 
Patron is responsible for ensuring that all guests and minor children adhere to all District rules, regulations, and policies. Any 
violation by a guest shall be deemed a violation by the Patron and may result in loss of access privileges. 

6. Acknowledgment of Rules: 
Patron affirms receipt of the AVENIR CDD Rules and Policies Handbook and agrees to abide by all provisions therein. Patron 
understands that violations may result in suspension or revocation of amenity privileges and other penalties as provided by District 
policy. 

7. Sovereign Immunity: 
Nothing contained herein shall be construed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the limits of liability beyond those 
established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other applicable law. 
Print Name: _________________Signature:   _____________ 
Date: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered

Page 349



 

 

 
Avenir Community Development District  

Non-Resident User Agreement 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed this ___ day of _______, 20___, by and between the Avenir Community Development 
District (“District”), and whose address is ____________________________ (“User”). The District is the owner of real property 
and facilities, including pools and other recreational amenities, located within Palm Beach County, Florida (collectively, the 
“Facilities”). User is a non-resident member of the public desiring to utilize the Facilities. A non-resident is defined as a person or 
family who does not reside or own property within the District. The District will permit the User to utilize the Facilities subject to 
the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 
User shall pay a one-time non-refundable annual fee (“Membership Fee”) to utilize the Facilities for 12 months.  
 
The 12-month period shall commence as of the date of this agreement and terminate on the same date the following year. No 
portion of the Membership Fee shall be refundable under any circumstances, including but not limited to relocation, non-use, 
revocation of privileges, or personal circumstances. 

 
The right to use the Facilities provided through this Agreement is personal to the User and their family members residing in 
the same household, and is not transferable, alienable, devisable, or inheritable. This Agreement shall be binding upon and 
shall inure to the benefit of the District and its respective legal representatives and successors. Nothing herein shall inure to 
the benefit of any third party not a party to this Agreement. 

 
User agrees that use of Facilities by User, their family members residing in the household, and any guests shall be subject to 
all rules, policies, and procedures of the District as may be amended from time to time. By signing below, User affirms that 
they have received or been given the opportunity to receive a copy of such policies and agrees to abide by them. Failure by 
User, household members, or guests to follow these policies may result in revocation of Facility access without refund. User 
shall be fully responsible for the conduct and compliance of all guests. Any violation of District policies by a guest shall be 
treated as a violation by the User. 
 
User agrees and acknowledges that the information provided herein is true and correct. It is understood that User Cards and 
Guest Passes are the property of the Avenir Community Development District (AVENIR CDD or District) and are non-
transferable. In consideration for admittance to the Facilities, User agrees on behalf of themselves, their guests, minor 
children, heirs, and successors, to hold harmless and release the AVENIR CDD, its staff, supervisors, agents, officers, and 
employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, or demands, including those arising from injuries, death, property 
damage, or other losses related to use of the Facilities—except where caused by the District’s gross or intentional negligence. 
User further understands that the District and its staff assume no responsibility for injuries or illness that User, or their minor 
children, may sustain due to physical condition or activities, including, but not limited to, swimming, sports, or recreational 
use. User expressly assumes all such risks. The District is not responsible for lost or stolen property. Nothing herein waives 
the District’s sovereign immunity or liability limits as defined in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 
All documents provided in connection with this Agreement are public records and will be treated in accordance with the 
District’s Rules of Procedure and Florida law. 
 
The District reserves the right to revoke membership or access privileges at any time for rule violations, misconduct, or safety 
concerns. No refund shall be issued in such cases. 
 
Portions of the Facilities may be monitored by video surveillance. Recordings may be used to enforce rules or review 
incidents. 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any disputes shall be brought in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Formatted: Font: 16 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 16 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 16 pt, Bold

Page 350



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written. 
 

USER AVENIR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

By:   
 

Payment Type:  Check #     
Credit Card  

Amount of Payment: $    
               Staff initials:   

By:   
 

 Date Paid:    
Amenities Expiration Date:   

 

  HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS (Must Reside in Same House)  
 

Name (Last, First) Cell Phone Email Address     Avenir ID      
# 

1.    

2.    

Name(s) of Children Age Birthdate  

3.    

4.    

5.    

6.    

7.    

8.    

 
   *In the event that one of the cards is lost, we will be responsible for paying $15.00 for each replacement card 
 
    

     Please initial 
  
  
  

NOTE TO STAFF: This form may contain confidential information. Please do not disclose its contents 
without first consulting the District Manager. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 351



 

 

Avenir Community Development District  
Non-Resident User Agreement 

 

  PRIMARY USER INFORMATION (family members to be added to reverse side)  
 

Last Name     First Name      
Address     

  
 

  EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION INFORMATION  
 
 
 

   

   
 
 

Please select all that apply: 

 I would like to receive e-mails on District programs and events. (Do not check this option if you want 
the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 

 I would like to receive text messages on District programs and events. (Do not check this option if you 
want the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 

 Only contact me in case of emergency. 
 

 

  SPECIAL NEEDS  

Does anyone in your family have special needs you would like us to be aware of?  YES  NO 
If you answered yes, please provide specific information below in the blank space: 

PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information 
you submit on this form may become part of a public record. This means that, if a citizen makes a public 
records request, we may be required to disclose the information you submit to us. Under certain 
circumstances, we may only be required to disclose part of the information submitted to us. If you believe 
that your records may qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the 
District Manager and complete the Address/Identification Confidentiality Request from Public Records 
Disclosure Form. 

PRIVACY NOTICE: If you indicate that we should only use the Optional/Emergency Notification 
Information in case of emergency, then, pursuant to Section 119.071, Florida Statutes the 
Optional/Emergency Notification Information (which consists of the information in this section) may 
be exempt from disclosures we make as the result of a public records request. 

Home Phone 
Number    

 

Cell Phone Number      Name 

Cell Phone Number      Name 
Email Address(es)     

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: 16 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 16 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.02", First line: 

Page 352



 

 

 
Signature Date     

 
If request is submitted instead by the person’s employing agency, complete the following: 

 
Agency: Name/title 

 

Signature: Date 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ADDRESS/IDENTIFICATION CONFIDENTIALITY REQUEST 

FROM PUBLIC RECORDS DISCLOSURE 
Florida law allows certain persons to request that a governmental entity not publicly disclose his/her specific identifying information 
and/or address in any of the entity’s governmental records. If eligible under Florida law, submit this completed form to Avenir Community 
Development District. Note that this form is not intended to be an exhaustive list of exemptions, and other exemptions may apply. It is 
your responsibility to ensure that you are eligible under Florida law for the exemption claimed, and the District reserves the right to 
pursue any available legal remedies in the event that no exemption exists and the District is harmed as a result. 
I hereby request the exemption (check applicable exemption category) for the person named below: 

Code Enforcement Officer* 
Dept. of Children and Family Services personnel with 
investigative duties involving abuse, neglect, exploitation, 
fraud, theft, or other criminal activities. * 
Dept. of Health personnel whose duties are to support the 
investigation of child abuse or neglect. * 
Dept. of Revenue personnel or local government 
personnel with duties relating to revenue collection and 
enforcement or child support enforcement. * 
Dept. of Business and Professional Regulation 
investigator or inspector (By signature below, it is 
certified that the person made “reasonable efforts to 
protect information from being accessible through 
other means available to the public.”). * 
Firefighter certified in compliance with s. 633.408, F.S. 
Guardian ad litem (By signature below, it is certified that 
the person made “reasonable efforts to protect such 
information from being accessible through other means 
available to the public.”). * 
Human resource, labor relations, or employee relations 
director, assistant director, manager or assistant manager 
of any local government agency or water management 
district whose duties include hiring and firing employees, 
labor contract negotiation, administration, or other 
personnel-related duties. * 
Judge or justice of the Florida Supreme Court, district 
court of appeal, circuit court and county court. * 
Judicial or quasi-judicial officer (general and special 
magistrate, judge of compensation claims, administrative 
law judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings, and 
child support enforcement hearing officer) (By signature 
below, it is certified that the person made “reasonable” 

 
Printed Name: 

 
efforts to protect such information from being accessible 
through other means available to the public.”). 
Juvenile probation officer or supervisor, detention 
superintendent, assistant detention superintendent, 
juvenile detention officer I or II, juvenile detention 
officer supervisor, juvenile residential officer or 
supervisors I or II, juvenile counselor or supervisor, 
human services counselor administrators, senior human 
services counselor administrators’ rehabilitation therapist, 
and social services counselor of the Dept. of Juvenile 
Justice. * 
Law enforcement personnel including correctional 
officers and correctional probation officers. * 
Prosecutor (includes state attorney, assistant state 
attorney, statewide prosecutor, assistant statewide 
prosecutor). * 
Public defenders and criminal conflict and civil regional 
counsel (includes assistant public defenders, assistant 
criminal conflict and assistant civil regional counsel). * 
U.S. attorney or assistant attorney, U.S. appellate judge, 
U.S district court judge and U.S. magistrate (By signature 
below, it is certified that the person made “reasonable 
efforts to protect information from being accessible 
through other means available to the public.”). * 
Victim of sexual battery, aggravated child abuse, 
aggravated stalking, harassment, aggravated battery, or 
domestic violence. (Attach official verification that crime 
occurred.). This is only a 5-year exemption. ** 
County Tax Collector (By signature below, it is certified 
that the person made “reasonable efforts to protect 
information from being accessible through other means 
available to the public.”). 
Other (list applicable statute):   

 
Residence Address (City, State, Zip):      
Prior/Current Position (for purpose of claiming exemption): Years Held:    
Description of Position: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To request an exemption for your spouse or child’s identifying information and address, please submit a separate sheet with the name, 
date of birth, and relationship. *Available to both current and former employees. **Florida law does not make this exemption 
applicable to the spouse or child of a donor or victim. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold

Page 353



 

 

 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
USER PERMIT FOR RECREATION CENTER: BANQUET ROOM(S) 

 

 

Name Date of Event:    
 

Organization:    
 

Mailing Address:    
 

Email Address: Phone:    
 

Intended Use: Estimated Age Group:    
 

Estimated Attendance:  Hours: from: to    
(Available from 8am – closing; including set-up/clean-up) 

 
Please circle the option you would like to reserve. 

 
 Event Hall (3,781 sq. ft.; max: 253 people):  

o $1,500/6 Hours (Patron Rate) 
o $2,800/All Day (Patron Rate) 
o $2,250/6 Hours (Non-Patron Rate) 
o $4,760/All Day (Non-Patron Rate)  

  
 
 

 Clubroom (745 sq. ft.; max: 49 people): 
o $650/6 Hours (Patron Rate)  
o $1,350/All Day (Patron Rate) 
o $950/6 Hours (Non-Patron Rate) 
o $1,850/All Day (Non-Patron Rate) 

 
 
 

Food & Beverage Requests: Special requests or outside catering must be coordinated with the Lifestyle Manager at least 14 days 
in advance of the reservation.  

 Catering (Available through approved vendors only)    Beer/Wine (Available through approved vendors only) 
 
 

Other Requests 
 Entertainment (Available through approved vendors only) 

 
 

*RESERVATION: To reserve your event date, please submit the following to the Lifestyle Director of the Avenir Community 
Development District (“District”): 

- A completed User Permit Form 
- A check for the refundable Cleaning/Damages Deposit, in the amount of $500 
- A separate check for (50%) of the rental fee (balance due by the date of the rental). 
 

 
*USAGE: Only District Patrons (as defined in the District’s policies) may rent the Banquet Rooms. The renter must be 21 years of 
age or older and must be on-site during the rental function. Any function for those younger than 21 years old must have adult supervision; 
an adult is responsible for all terms of this Permit.      Initial  

 

 
*ADVERTISING: All advertising naming the District Recreation Center (or any derivation of) must include the following statement 
in a legible font: “This is not an AVENIR CDD sponsored or endorsed event.”    Initial  

 
*ALCOHOL USAGE: All alcoholic beverages consumed at the District Recreation Facility, either individually, during special events, 
or during catered events, must be purchased from an approved vendor. Any violation will constitute potential cause for immediate shut-
down of party/event with NO REFUND. Renter must comply with all state and local alcohol regulations. Any alcohol-related 
incidents resulting in injury, property damage, or police involvement shall be the full responsibility of the Renter.  
        Initial________

PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information you submit on this form 
may become part of a public record. This means that if a citizen makes a public records request, we may be required to disclose part 
or all of the information you submit to us. 

NOTE TO STAFF: This form may contain confidential or exempt information. Please do not disclose its contents without first 
consulting the District Manager. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.48", First line:  0.02"

Page 354



 

 

 

Please read and initial below as your agreement: 

The Renter acknowledges receipt of and agrees to comply with all clubhouse rental rules, regulations, and policies. 
Failure to comply with any terms herein may result in immediate termination of the event, forfeiture of the security 
deposit, assessment of additional penalties or damages, and revocation of future rental privileges at the sole 
discretion of The District. 

The Recreation Center, and the property surrounding it, is a NON-smoking facility. Please advise your guests of this 
policy. Any violations will subject the renter to a forfeit of the Damages Deposit. 

The Renter must strictly adhere to the full rental timeframe, including setup and breakdown. Entry before or 
occupancy after the contracted period by more than 15 minutes may result in additional hourly charges (minimum 1 
hour) and forfeiture of part or all of the security deposit. 

No decorations may be affixed to walls, ceilings, doors, or fixtures without express approval. Use of confetti, 
glitter, nails, tacks, or any adhesive materials is strictly prohibited. Violations will result in cleaning or repair fees. 

No open flames, fireworks, sparklers, grills, or candles are permitted on District property without prior written 
approval. Violations will result in termination of the event and full forfeiture of the deposit. 

The Renter shall not move, alter, or misuse any fixtures, furniture, or equipment belonging to The District. 
Unauthorized alterations or misuse will be considered damage and subject to penalties. 

Any unauthorized access or tampering with gates, fences, doors, or emergency exits is strictly prohibited. 
Violations may result in the termination of the event and full forfeiture of the security deposit, as well as additional 
fines. 

The Renter is responsible for ensuring that all guests and minors in attendance are properly supervised at all times. 
Any damage or disturbances caused by unsupervised guests or minors shall be the full responsibility of the Renter. 

The Renter is responsible for returning the facility to its original condition immediately following the event. This 
includes removing all decorations, trash, food, and personal belongings. Failure to do so may result in cleaning fees 
being deducted from the deposit. 

No alcohol may be served or consumed on District property without prior written approval and, if required by law, 
appropriate permits. The use of illegal substances is strictly prohibited and will result in immediate termination of 
the event, police notification, and full forfeiture of the security deposit. Renter must comply with all state and local 
alcohol regulations. Any alcohol-related incidents resulting in injury, property damage, or police involvement shall 
be the full responsibility of the Renter. 

 

All outside vendors must provide a valid certificate of general liability insurance, naming The District as 
an additional insured no less than 14 days prior to the event. Vendors may not access or operate on 
District property without proof of valid insurance and District approval. Failure to provide this 
documentation may result in cancellation of the rental with no refund. 

The District reserves the right to deny or cancel any application based on safety, site capacity, scheduling 
considerations, weather, the potential for community disturbance, public health concerns, or other issues impacting 
the community. 

The District reserves the right to withhold all or a portion of the security deposit in the event of any violation of 
established clubhouse or rental policies, or for any damage, repairs, or excessive cleaning required as a result of 
the rental. The determination of such violations or damages shall be at the sole discretion of The District and may 
include, but is not limited to, failure to comply with rental timeframes, improper use of the facilities, or any 
physical damage to District property. 

The Renter shall be held financially responsible for any and all damages to the clubhouse or surrounding property 
caused by themselves, their guests, vendors, or invitees during the rental period. The District will assess damages 
and provide an itemized invoice for repairs or replacement costs beyond the security deposit, if necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 355



 

 

 

*INDEMNIFICATION AND WAIVER 

I personally agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) and 
its supervisors, officers, directors, staff, relevant agents, and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by 
any person, corporation or other entity, for injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use 
of any facility or amenity or other property owned or operated by the District (the “Facilities”), and, if alcohol is to be permitted, arising 
out of or in connection with the consumption or provision of alcohol, including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect 
thereto. The District shall not be liable or responsible for any delay, cancellation, or failure to perform any part of this agreement due to acts of 
God, weather conditions, government restrictions, pandemics, or other events beyond its reasonable control. The Renter acknowledges that the 
facility may be under video surveillance for security purposes. These recordings may be used by The District in the event of suspected policy 
violations, damages, or legal claims. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or 
limits of liability beyond any limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes or other law. 

 
 
I have read, understand, and agree to abide by all policies and rules of the District governing the District’s Facilities. Failure 

to adhere to the District’s Policies and rules may result in the suspension or termination of my privileges to use the facilities and 
forfeiture of all of my deposits. I also understand that I am financially responsible for any damages caused by me, my family 
members, or my guests. Renter agrees to notify all guests of the risks associated with the use of the facility and assumes full 
responsibility for ensuring that all guests comply with facility rules and conduct themselves safely. If requested, I will obtain an 
event insurance policy naming the District, and its agents, supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff as additional insured. 

 
 

Signature: Date:   
 

 

Print Name:    

Page 356



 

 

 

AVENIR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BANQUET ROOMS FEES AND 
CHARGES 
 
 

Please circle the option you would like to reserve. 
 
 

 Event Hall (3,781 sq. ft.; max: 253 people):  

o $1,500/6 Hours (Patron Rate) 

o $2,800/All Day (Patron Rate) 

o $2,250/6 Hours (Non-Patron Rate) 

o $4,760/All Day (Non-Patron Rate) 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 Clubroom (745 sq. ft.; max: 49 people): 

o $650/6 Hours (Patron Rate) 

o $1,350/All Day (Patron Rate) 

o $950/6 Hours (Non-Patron Rate) 

o $1,850/All Day (Non-Patron Rate) 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Refundable Cleaning/Damage Deposit: $500 
Please pay by separate check at the time of reservation. 

If paying by check, please indicate your Deposit check preference:  District to Destroy  User to Pick Up 

The Cleaning/Damage Deposit check may be picked up only after the post-party checklist is completed and District staff have 
confirmed there are no cleaning/damage expenses; otherwise, if there are no cleaning/damages expenses and the user has selected 
“District to Destroy,” the check will be shredded within two (2) business days after the conclusion of the event. 

 
Refund/Cancellation Policy: 
Up to 30 days before the event: Full refund of the Rental Fee and Cleaning/Damage Deposit. 
Fewer than 30 days before the event: Full refund of the Cleaning/Damage Deposit. Refund of Rental Fee minus 50% cancellation 
fee.          INITIAL    

 

Payment Terms: 
Check: For those paying with check(s), make check(s) payable to the Avenir Community Development District. INITIAL    

 

Office Use Only: 
 

Cleaning/Damage Deposit: $500 

Payment Method:  Check #   

Received: Date  INITIAL     

 
Rental Fee: $   

Payment Method:  Check #    

Deposit Received: Date  INITIAL  

Balance Received: Date      INITIAL    

 
   Clubhouse Staff Signature:_____________________________________________________ 
    

District Signature:   

Print Name:    

Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  3", First line:  0"

Page 357



 

 

 

EXEMPT STATUS 
 

Is any of the personal information that you have provided on this form, including, but not limited to, identity, address, and telephone 
number, exempt from disclosure under Florida law? 

 
 YES  NO 

 
If you checked “YES,” please explain which exemption you qualify for: 

 

 
 
 

If you checked “YES,” please provide a written request for such exemption to District staff at the following address: 
 
 

Avenir Community Development District c/o Special 
District Services, Inc. 
2501 A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, FL, 33410 
Attn: District Manager 

-or- 
jpierman@sdsinc.org 

Page 358



 

 

 

AVENIR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
USER PERMIT FOR PAVILIONS 

 

 
Name: Check #: _ Date of Event:    

 

Mailing Address:    
 

Email Address: Phone: Cell:    
 

Intended Use:    
 

Estimated Attendance:  Hours: from _ to    
(Available from 8am-6pm; 6-hour max, including set up/clean up) 

 
Please check the facility you would like to reserve. 

 Recreation Center Pool Pavilion, single (550 sq. ft.; max: 20 people):  $500/6 hours 
 Recreation Center Pool Pavilion, double (620 sq. ft.; max: 35 people):  $800/6 hours 
 Recreation Center Café Pavilion (1,350 sq. ft.; max: 30 people) : $1,000/6 Hours 

 
*RESERVATION: To reserve your event date, please submit the following to the Lifestyle Director of the Avenir Community 
Development District (“District”): 

- A completed User Permit Form 
- A check for the refundable Cleaning/Damages Deposit, in the amount of $500 
- A separate check for (50%) of the rental fee (balance due by the date of the rental). 
 

 
*USAGE: Only District Patrons (as defined in the District’s policies) may rent the Banquet Rooms. The renter must be 21 years of 
age or older and must be on-site during the rental function. Any function for those younger than 21 years old must have adult supervision; 
an adult is responsible for all terms of this Permit.      Initial  

 

 
*ADVERTISING: All advertising naming the District Recreation Center (or any derivation of) must include the following statement 
in a legible font: “This is not an AVENIR CDD sponsored or endorsed event.”    Initial  

 
*ALCOHOL USAGE: All alcoholic beverages consumed at the District Recreation Facility, either individually, during special events, 
or during catered events, must be purchased from an approved vendor. Any violation will constitute potential cause for immediate shut-
down of party/event with NO REFUND. Renter must comply with all state and local alcohol regulations. Any alcohol-related 
incidents resulting in injury, property damage, or police involvement shall be the full responsibility of the Renter.  
        Initial_______

PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information you submit on this form 
may become part of a public record. This means that if a citizen makes a public records request, we may be required to disclose part 
or all of the information you submit to us. 

NOTE TO STAFF: This form may contain confidential or exempt information. Please do not disclose its contents without first 
consulting the District Manager. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Page 359



 

 

 

 
Please read and initial below as your agreement: 

The Renter acknowledges receipt of and agrees to comply with all clubhouse rental rules, regulations, and policies. 
Failure to comply with any terms herein may result in immediate termination of the event, forfeiture of the security 
deposit, assessment of additional penalties or damages, and revocation of future rental privileges at the sole 
discretion of The District. 

The Recreation Center, and the property surrounding it, is a NON-smoking facility. Please advise your guests of this 
policy. Any violations will subject the renter to a forfeit of the Damages Deposit. 

The Renter must strictly adhere to the full rental timeframe, including setup and breakdown. Entry before or 
occupancy after the contracted period by more than 15 minutes may result in additional hourly charges (minimum 1 
hour) and forfeiture of part or all of the security deposit. 

No decorations may be affixed to walls, ceilings, doors, or fixtures without express approval. Use of confetti, 
glitter, nails, tacks, or any adhesive materials is strictly prohibited. Violations will result in cleaning or repair fees. 

No open flames, fireworks, sparklers, grills, or candles are permitted on District property without prior written 
approval. Violations will result in termination of the event and full forfeiture of the deposit. 

The Renter shall not move, alter, or misuse any fixtures, furniture, or equipment belonging to The District. 
Unauthorized alterations or misuse will be considered damage and subject to penalties. 

Any unauthorized access or tampering with gates, fences, doors, or emergency exits is strictly prohibited. 
Violations may result in the termination of the event and full forfeiture of the security deposit, as well as additional 
fines. 

The Renter is responsible for ensuring that all guests and minors in attendance are properly supervised at all times. 
Any damage or disturbances caused by unsupervised guests or minors shall be the full responsibility of the Renter. 

The Renter is responsible for returning the facility to its original condition immediately following the event. This 
includes removing all decorations, trash, food, and personal belongings. Failure to do so may result in cleaning fees 
being deducted from the deposit. 

No alcohol may be served or consumed on District property without prior written approval and, if required by law, 
appropriate permits. The use of illegal substances is strictly prohibited and will result in immediate termination of 
the event, police notification, and full forfeiture of the security deposit. Renter must comply with all state and local 
alcohol regulations. Any alcohol-related incidents resulting in injury, property damage, or police involvement shall 
be the full responsibility of the Renter. 

 

All outside vendors must provide a valid certificate of general liability insurance, naming The District as 
an additional insured no less than 14 days prior to the event. Vendors may not access or operate on 
District property without proof of valid insurance and District approval. Failure to provide this 
documentation may result in cancellation of the rental with no refund. 

The District reserves the right to deny or cancel any application based on safety, site capacity, scheduling 
considerations, weather, the potential for community disturbance, public health concerns, or other issues impacting 
the community. 

The District reserves the right to withhold all or a portion of the security deposit in the event of any violation of 
established clubhouse or rental policies, or for any damage, repairs, or excessive cleaning required as a result of 
the rental. The determination of such violations or damages shall be at the sole discretion of The District and may 
include, but is not limited to, failure to comply with rental timeframes, improper use of the facilities, or any 
physical damage to District property. 

The Renter shall be held financially responsible for any and all damages to the clubhouse or surrounding property 
caused by themselves, their guests, vendors, or invitees during the rental period. The District will assess damages 
and provide an itemized invoice for repairs or replacement costs beyond the security deposit, if necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 360



 

 

 

 

*INDEMNIFICATION AND WAIVER 

I personally agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Avenir Community Development District (the “District”) and 
its supervisors, officers, directors, staff, relevant agents, and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by 
any person, corporation or other entity, for injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use 
of any facility or amenity or other property owned or operated by the District (the “Facilities”), and, if alcohol is to be permitted, arising 
out of or in connection with the consumption or provision of alcohol, including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect 
thereto. The District shall not be liable or responsible for any delay, cancellation, or failure to perform any part of this agreement due to acts of 
God, weather conditions, government restrictions, pandemics, or other events beyond its reasonable control. The Renter acknowledges that the 
facility may be under video surveillance for security purposes. These recordings may be used by The District in the event of suspected policy 
violations, damages, or legal claims. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or 
limits of liability beyond any limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes or other law. 

 
 
I have read, understand, and agree to abide by all policies and rules of the District governing the District’s Facilities. Failure 

to adhere to the District’s Policies and rules may result in the suspension or termination of my privileges to use the facilities and 
forfeiture of all of my deposits. I also understand that I am financially responsible for any damages caused by me, my family 
members, or my guests. Renter agrees to notify all guests of the risks associated with the use of the facility and assumes full 
responsibility for ensuring that all guests comply with facility rules and conduct themselves safely. If requested, I will obtain an 
event insurance policy naming the District, and its agents, supervisors, officers, directors, employees, and staff as additional insured. 

 
 

Signature: Date:   
 

 

Print Name:    

Page 361



 

 

 

AVENIR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

PAVILION FEES AND CHARGES 

 
Refundable Cleaning/Damage Deposit: $500 
Please pay by separate check at the time of reservation. 

If paying by check, please indicate your Deposit check preference:  District to Destroy  User to Pick Up 

The Cleaning/Damage Deposit check may be picked up only after the post-party checklist is completed and District staff have 
confirmed there are no cleaning/damage expenses; otherwise, if there are no cleaning/damages expenses and the user has selected 
“District to Destroy,” the check will be shredded within two (2) business days after the conclusion of the event. 

 
 

Refund/Cancellation Policy: 
Up to 14 days before the event: Full refund of the Rental Fee and Cleaning/Damage Deposit. 
Fewer than 14 days before the event: Full refund of the Cleaning/Damage Deposit. Refund of Rental Fee minus 50% cancellation 
fee. 
 
          INITIAL    

 

Payment Terms: 
Check: For those paying with check(s), make check(s) payable to the Avenir Community Development District.  
  INITIAL   

Office Use Only: 
 

Cleaning/Damage Deposit: $500250 

Payment Method:  

 Check #      

Received: Date  INITIAL     

 
Rental Fee: $   

Payment Method:   Check #    

 Credit Card (Fees Apply) 

Deposit Received: Date  INITIAL  

Balance Received: Date      INITIAL    

 
   Clubhouse Staff Signature:_____________________________________________________ 
    

District Signature:   

Print Name:    

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Page 362



     

A
V

E
N

IR
 C

D
D

 

A
L

C
O

H
O

L
 

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 M

A
T

R
IX

 
 

 
B

Y
O

B
 

(I
nf

or
m

al
 G

at
he

ri
ng

s)
 

B
Y

O
B

 
Pa

tr
on

s a
nd

/o
r 

G
ue

st
s 

(R
en

ta
l E

ve
nt

s)
 

Se
rv

ed
 

Pa
tr

on
s a

nd
/o

r G
ue

st
s 

(R
en

ta
l E

ve
nt

s)
 

So
ld

 
Pa

tr
on

s a
nd

/o
r 

G
ue

st
s 

(R
en

ta
l E

ve
nt

s)
 

Pe
rm

itt
ed

 
(A

qu
at

ic
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s)
 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

Y
es

, b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

a 
lic

en
se

d 
ba

rte
nd

er
/c

at
er

er
 is

 h
ire

d 
Y

es
, b

ut
 o

nl
y 

if 
a 

lic
en

se
d 

ba
rte

nd
er

/c
at

er
er

 is
 h

ire
d 

Pe
rm

itt
ed

 
(R

ec
re

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r)
 

N
o.

 A
ll 

al
co

ho
l m

us
t b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
ed

 
ve

nd
or

. 
 

N
o.

 A
ll 

al
co

ho
l m

us
t b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
ed

 
ve

nd
or

. 
 

N
o.

 A
ll 

al
co

ho
l m

us
t b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
ed

 
ve

nd
or

. 
 

N
o.

 A
ll 

al
co

ho
l m

us
t b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
ed

 
ve

nd
or

. 
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
N

on
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 te

n 
pe

op
le

 p
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
al

co
ho

l i
s g

oi
ng

 to
 

be
 c

on
su

m
ed

, r
en

te
r i

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ar

ty
 

st
af

fin
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

. 

H
om

eo
w

ne
r’

s I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

R
id

er
/E

nd
or

se
m

en
t 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
sp

ec
ia

l e
ve

nt
 

co
ve

ra
ge

 w
ith

 a
lc

oh
ol

 
en

do
rs

em
en

t o
r 

re
qu

ire
d 

hi
rin

g 
of

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ar

ty
 st

af
fin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 W

IT
H

 
w

ai
ve

rs
 e

xe
cu

te
d 

by
 

no
nr

es
id

en
ts

. 

Ev
en

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
in

su
ra

nc
e:

 
 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

da
m

ag
e;

 
 

$1
,0

00
,0

00
 p

er
so

na
l 

in
ju

ry
, 

 
A

lc
oh

ol
 ri

de
r 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 n

am
ed

 a
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

ur
ed

 
 R

eq
ui

si
te

 st
af

fin
g 

le
ve

ls
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

Ev
en

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
in

su
ra

nc
e:

 
 

 
$2

50
,0

00
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

da
m

ag
e;

 
 

$1
,0

00
,0

00
 p

er
so

na
l 

in
ju

ry
, 

 
A

lc
oh

ol
 ri

de
r 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 n

am
ed

 a
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

ur
ed

 
 R

eq
ui

si
te

 st
af

fin
g 

le
ve

ls
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
A

dm
is

si
on

 F
ee

 
Pe

rm
itt

ed
 

N
o 

N
o 

A
dm

is
si

on
 fe

e 
on

ly
 fo

r 
D

is
tri

ct
 sp

on
so

re
d 

ev
en

ts
 

w
/D

is
tri

ct
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

A
dm

is
si

on
 fe

e 
on

ly
 fo

r 
D

is
tri

ct
 sp

on
so

re
d 

ev
en

ts
 

w
/D

is
tri

ct
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

 N
ot

es
: 

1.
 T

he
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 c

ha
rt

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
lte

re
d 

af
te

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t M

an
ag

er
 a

nd
/o

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
ns

el
 

an
d 

N
O

T
 b

y A
m

en
ity

 M
an

ag
em

en
t. 

Fo
rm

at
te
d:

 Fo
nt

: 1
2 p

t, N
o 

un
de

rlin
e

Fo
rm

at
te
d:

 C
en

te
re

d, 
Ind

en
t: L

eft
:  4

", 
Fir

st 
lin

e: 
 0.

09
"

Fo
rm

at
te
d:

 Fo
nt

: 1
2 p

t

Fo
rm

at
te
d:

 Fo
nt

: B
old

, U
nd

er
lin

e

Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368


	Avenir Community Developement District - August 28, 2025 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda 
	Proof of Publication
	June 26, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-11 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Final Budget

	New Business
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-12 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Acceptance of Annual Engineers Report 2025
	Consider Approval of Tree Trimming Proposals (Arazoza)
	Consider Award of Contract for Mosquito and Midge Control (Clarke and VDCI)
	Consider Approval of Agreement for Underwriter Services & Rule G-17 Disclosure
	Consider Approval of 2026 Avenir 5K K9 for Warriors Fun Run & Walk (Sunday March 15, 2026)
	Consider Approval of 2025 Avenir Somerset Charter School Turkey Trot 5k (Saturday November 22, 2025)

	Consent Agenda
	Consider Ratification of Stone Agmt (Titan Stone) - Pod 21
	Consider Ratification of AC Agmt (Quality Electric LLC) - Pod 21
	Consider Ratification of Carpenter Contractors of America Agmt - Pod 21
	Consider Ratification of Louvers and Signage Agmt (JC Iron Ornamental Works Inc) - Pod 21
	Consider Ratification of Charter School Documents
	Consider Ratification of CO No 11- Northlake Phase II
	Consider Ratification of GL Homes Installation License and Maintenance Agmt
	Consider Approval of Propsal for Design Entrance Design Work (HSQ)
	Consider Ratification of Contractor Agreement (Palm Beach Gardens)
	Consider Ratification of Publix Access Road Addendum (Arazoza)
	Consider Ratification of Spine Road 3 Re-Clean of Lift Station #5 (Centerline)

	Clubhouse
	Clubhouse Management Report
	Consider Request to Extend Tennis Court Hours
	Discussion Regarding Clubhouse Rules Updates
	Consider Approval of Clubhouse Landscaping Buffer Proposal 

	Administrative Matters
	2025 Legislative Update Memo – BCLMR





